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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internet website
operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazette newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they
need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed
issuers.

“Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.”

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited (the
"Company") collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (i) the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (ii) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (iii) all opinions
expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases
and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Corporate Information

NRER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

XIE Hai Yu (Chairman)
TIAN Bing Xin

DONG Bao Qing

XU Dao Bin

DENG Yu Hui

MA Shui Cheong

Independent Non-Executive Directors

LIU Shang Ping

KONG Tze Wing

XU Wei

COMPANY SECRETARY
LAW Hau Kwan

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

TIAN Bing Xin
LAW Hau Kwan

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
DENG Yu Hui

AUDIT COMMITTEE
LIU Shang Ping

KONG Tze Wing
XU Wei
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Corporate Information
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PRINCIPAL BANKS
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Corporate Information
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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WEBSITE
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Biographical Information of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. XIE Hai Yu, aged 47, was appointed as the Chairman and
an Executive Director of the Company on 5 August 2011. Mr. Xie
graduated from South China University of Technology majoring
in Industrial Management Engineering in Guangdong Province,
PRC, and completed the study of EMBA programme from Sun
Yat-sen University in Guangzhou in 2001. From 1983, Mr. Xie
organized and participated in the construction and management
of various domestic projects, including the engineering
construction projects of large scale naval ports, airports and
barracks. Mr. Xie has over 28 years of experience in engineering
construction and management field. Mr. Xie has over 19 years of
experience in property development and corporate management.
Currently, Mr. Xie serves as the chairman of the board of a
property development corporation in PRC, business of which
covers more than 10 cities and regions including Guangzhou,
Foshan, Zhengzhou, Changsha, Nanning, Qingdao, Guiyang and
Haikou and an executive director and chairman of Goodtop Tin
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 195), the company
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Xie is
also a visiting professor of Inner Mongolia University, PRC and
vice president of China Society for the Promotion of Ecological
Ethics*.
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Biographical Information of Directors

Mr. TIAN Bing Xin, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 5 August 2011. Mr. Tian graduated
from Inner Mongolia University, PRC, majoring in Chinese
Language and obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree in 1982.
Mr. Tian also obtained a Doctor of Laws Degree from lJinan
University in Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, PRC. Mr.
Tian holds a title of Senior Economist in PRC. Mr. Tian has
extensive experience in media industry. He joined Xinhua News
Agency after he graduated in 1982 and held various positions
including the director of Politics Press Room of Inner Mongolia
Branch of Xinhua News Agency, the deputy general manager of
Economic Information Daily of Xinhua News Agency, the director
of Politics, Culture and Education Press Room of Guangdong
Branch of Xinhua News Agency, and the head of Guangzhou
Reporter Station of Xinhua News Agency. Mr. Tian also held
senior management positions in domestic large-scale enterprises,
which included a director of office of Guangdong International
Trust and Investment Company Limited* and the general
manager of Guangdong Trust Housing Development Company*
and has accumulated extensive experience in administrative
management. Mr. Tian is currently the deputy secretary
general of China Society for the Promotion of Ecological
Ethics*, a member of Guangdong Senior Economist Evaluation
Committee*, and part-time professor of College of Journalism
and Communication of Jinan University. Mr. Tian had published a
number of books, among which, the {PRC’s No. 1 Certificate)
obtained PRC’s First National Books Wenjin Nomination Award.
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Biographical Information of Directors

Mr. DONG Bao Qing, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 5 August 2011. Mr. Dong holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree from Central China Normal University
in the Hubei Province, PRC. Mr. Dong is a senior media worker
and has over 20 years of experience in the media industry. He
has worked at Guangzhou Daily Press* (“Guangzhou Daily”)
since 1989, he served as head of Information Department
of Guangzhou Daily, technical director of Guangzhou Daily
Group, vice president and chief editor of Guangzhou Morning
Post, standing vice director of interview centre for special
issues of Guangzhou Daily, and chief editor of Science Pioneer
Newspaper*. Mr. Dong also has extensive experience in
digitalization media, and is one of the pioneers of the internet
media in PRC. Mr. Dong was the first responsible officer of
e-version of Guangzhou Daily and the chief executive officer
of Dayoo.com, the first gateway website in South China. Mr.
Dong currently acts as president of Guangzhou Mailoutong
Information Communication Company Limited* and president of
Guangzhou Jin Cai Network Technology Company Limited*.

Mr. XU Dao Bin, aged 41, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 15 August 2011. Mr. Xu Dao Bin
obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Huazhong University of
Science & Technology in Hubei Province, PRC. Mr. Xu Dao Bin has
over 6 years of experience in media and corporate management,
including acting as the head and chief editor of the editorial
department of a PRC magazine. Mr. Xu Dao Bin founded
Shenzhen Daohe Corporate Planning Company Limited* in 2005
and is currently the chief executive officer of Daohe Cultural
Industry Group*.
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Biographical Information of Directors

Mr. DENG Yu Hui, aged 37, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 15 August 2011. Mr. Deng holds
a Bachelor Degree of Economics from Sun Yat-sen University
in Guangdong Province, PRC and is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Institute of Public
Accountants, Australia. Mr. Deng is also a certified public
accountant and a certified tax agent in PRC. Mr. Deng had been
working in an international accountants firm for 10 years, and
currently, Mr. Deng is the chief financial officer of a domestic
property corporation in PRC. Mr. Deng has over 14 years of
experience in financial management, financing, auditing and
financial consulting.

Mr. MA Shui Cheong, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive
Director and Managing Director of the Company on 13 May
2010. Mr. Ma has over 10 years of working experience in
managing various businesses in PRC and holds a Bachelor Degree
of Business Administration in Management from The Open
University of Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Shang Ping, aged 36, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 5
August 2011. Mr. Liu has many years’ experience in business
management. Mr. Liu currently acts as a member of experts
committee of Shenzhen Cypress Capital Co., Ltd.* and vice
president of Huanggang Branch of Lions Clubs International.
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Biographical Information of Directors

ESEEER

Mr. KONG Tze Wing, v+ Jp, aged 61, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 20 April
2007. Mr. Kong holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting and a
Bachelor Degree in Business Administration. Mr. Kong is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
since 1985 and became a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in 1995. Mr. Kong became an
ACA of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales in October 2004. Mr. Kong was a former Vice President
and former Chairman of Mainland Affairs Committee of Hong
Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting Technicians. Mr. Kong is
also the Hon. President of The Institute of Financial Accountants
in Hong Kong. He has been Certified Public Accountants since
1981. Mr. Kong is a sole practitioner of the firm Messrs. James
T. W. Kong & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising). Mr.
Kong was an elected District Board member for the period from
1991 to 2007. Mr. Kong is actively participating in community
services and has been appointed by the HKSAR Government to
sit on various committees and appeal boards in Hong Kong.

Mr. XU Wei, aged 39, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 August 2011. Mr. Xu
Wei holds a Double Bachelor Degrees in Philosophy and Laws
from Peking University, PRC, and obtained a Master Degree
in Public Policy from John F. Kennedy School of Government
of Harvard University in 2003. Mr. Xu Wei has over 7 years
of experience in internet media marketing and corporate
management. Mr. Xu Wei once worked as the secretary to
president of Peking University Founder Group* in PRC, and
has been the chairman and general manager of Beijing Tensyn
Innovation Internet Marketing Technology Company Limited*
since 2006. Mr. Xu Wei had been awarded as “Hundred persons
of a Decade in Internet” by the PRC Internet Center for three
successive years during the years from 2007 to 2009.

*  for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Review of Results

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$48,873,000, representing an
increase of approximately HK$6,481,000 or 15.3% as compared
with approximately HK$42,392,000 for the previous year.
The increase in turnover was contributed by the increase in
advertising income as compared to the previous year.

Loss attributable to the Company’s shareholders for the year
ended 31 March 2012 was approximately HK$40,466,000,
representing a decrease in loss of approximately HK$9,850,000
or 19.6% as compared with loss of approximately
HK$50,316,000 for the previous year. The decrease in
losses was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in turnover
of approximately HK$6,481,000 when compared with
approximately HK$42,392,000 for the previous year; (ii) the
decrease in printing cost of approximately HK$10,355,000
when compared with previous year; (iii) the decrease in staff
cost by approximately HK$6,366,000 when compared with
approximately HK$30,019,000 for the previous year; and (iv)
there was no tax credit recorded during the year as compared
with approximately HK$11,611,000 recorded in the prior year.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31 March 2012, the Group did not maintain sufficient
liquid funds and had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$381,292,000 (2011: approximately HK$97,680,000). Cash
and bank balances were approximately HK$3,624,000 (2011:
approximately HK$1,490,000).
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWR D

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s total loans and borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$473,267,000 (2011:
approximately HK$428,416,000). Among the total amounts of
such loans and borrowings, approximately HK$381,951,000
(2011: approximately HK$87,454,000) was payable within one
year and approximately HK$91,316,000 (2011: approximately
HK$340,962,000) payable after one year.

On 10 November 2011, a loan facility with principal amount
of not exceeding HK$100,000,000 was granted to the Group
from a company wholly owned by an Executive Director of the
Company, mainly for the Group's working capital needs. As
at 31 March 2012, total unutilized loan facilities amounted to
HK$91,900,000 (2011: NIL).

As at 31 March 2012, the Group recorded a total deficiency in
capital of approximately HK$468,090,000 (2011: approximately
HK$427,884,000).

Share Capital Structure

There was no change in the Company’s share capital structure
during the year. As at 31 March 2012, the Company's total
issued share capital was approximately HK$98,584,000. This
amount was made up of approximately 1,971,686,000 shares
with a par value of HK$0.05 each.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 March 2012, no assets of the Group were pledged for loan
facilities granted to the Group (2011: Nil).
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR D

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and Any
Related Hedges

The Group’s transactional currency is Hong Kong dollars. As
substantially all the turnover is in Hong Kong dollar, the Group’s
transactional foreign exchange exposure is insignificant. Also,
there is no hedging policy with respect to the foreign exchange
exposure.

Operating Lease Commitments

As at 31 March 2012 and 2011, the total future minimum lease
payments under operating leases are payable as follows:

BE == % B 2 [ B 2 A A1 78 R ¥ e

AEBzZX5E®REE ARAE
BzRBAZHEERANEEERE"
ZRER B 2 2 5 SN L O - R Bp - R
£% B30 45 54 91 E [ B R 7 3 R UK

KREHFHEIE
RZE——FR_F——F=HA

=t A RELEHEANZRE
RIEHE @D T

2012 2011

—E-—fF —FE——F

HK$'000 HK$°000

BEFTT BT T

Within one year —FR 2,157 6,572
In the second to fifth year F_FEFRF

inclusive (BEEREME) 4,409 2,801

6,566 9,373

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office premises, machinery and motor vehicles.
Leases are negotiated for an average term of three years and
rentals are fixed throughout the respective lease periods.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Within the challenging operating environment during the period
under review, the Group's operation continued to be affected by
inflation and global economic uncertainties. A few changes had
been encountered during the year.

On 27 May 2011, the Company was informed by the Stock
Exchange that the GEM Listing Committee has decided to
proceed to cancellation of the Company’s listing status pursuant
to Rule 9.15 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is required
to submit a viable resumption proposal within six months from
27 May 2011 to the Stock Exchange to demonstrate that the
Company has a sufficient level of operations and management
expertise on the business pursuits of the Company to warrant
the continued listing of the Company's securities on the Stock
Exchange. On 11 November 2011, a resumption proposal was
submitted to the Stock Exchange for its consideration.

In between the turbulent, the Group’s management team has
undergone some changes. In August 2011, the Board was
restructured. New Board members and management team in
journalism have been introduced to the Group. Both the new
Board members and management team are highly experienced
in PRC’s media and publishing industry. Under the leadership of
the new management team together with various effective cost
control measures taken, the Group recorded a gross profit from
its operations during the year.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
EEENWR D

Further in December 2011, the Group has obtained licenses to
establish two journalist stations in Beijing and Guangzhou, PRC.
As such, the Group can gather more comprehensive information,
first-hand information or exclusive news in PRC. In return, it
enhanced the content of our newspaper.

After that, since March 2012, the Group's newspaper (full
and simplified version — with less pages of around 12 to 16
pages) has been distributed in PRC, including Guangdong and
Fujian Provinces through China National Publication and Export
Corporation. Direct momentary contribution from distribution
in PRC is not material when compared with existing distribution
revenue in Hong Kong. However, with the enlarged group of
reader, growth of advertising revenue is expected.

At last but not the least, the Group’s management targets
to develop a new promotion service business relating to the
organisation of promotion events in Hong Kong for overseas
customers. The Group’s management considers that promotion
service business can improve the advertising income as well as
creating a new source of promotion income from the events.
Positive contribution had been recorded in the financial year
and increase in its contribution in the coming financial year is
expected.

To further improve the financial situation of the Group, the
management has conducting various negotiations with the
major loan providers to consider the proposal of capitalization
and waive of most of the borrowings. In between, the Group
will continue its various cost control measures to ensure the
efficiency of the use of existing resources. In all the time, the
Group will never falter in its missions, to deliver truth and
fair information with the highest standards of quality and
professionalism to their readers and advertisers.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWR D

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group employed 119 (2011: 168)
staffs who are normally situated in Hong Kong. Employee
remuneration, including directors’ remuneration, for the year
ended 31 March 2012 was approximately HK$23,653,000
(2011: approximately HK$30,019,000). The remuneration
packages of the Group’s employees are rewarded on individual
performance-related basis and by reference to the market
conditions.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 March 2012. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: Nil).
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Directors’ Report

ESEREE

The Directors submit herewith their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company with its shares
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market ("“GEM") of The Hong
Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 is set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 43 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company during the year.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2012.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in notes 27 and 32 to the
financial statements, respectively.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively.

16 Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited Annual Report 2012

%%ﬁ%%ﬁ Zﬁ%% AR A K
AEEHE —#=ZA=+—~8
¢¢EZ%%&%%%%O
EERK

ARalB—HEEZERAR ERHG
REBBEXSMBRA ﬂ(rﬂéﬁﬁé
Frl) BIZEMR ([BIZMR]) Ef AR
Mﬁ%ﬁﬁZi%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%i&%W
FF18 °

% ll‘ & HQ aN

AEEHZE -_T——F=A=1+—H
IHFEZEEHNFRFIZEZEA
2HEWEFHE -

FARRBLERNFHARE -EFET
ERERRNEBE T ——F=A=1—
BIEFE 2 REBE -

BRAT B
ARRRANBRENFAN 2 5
B0 BB B # R MY aE27 232 -
&
ARBIRAEEZFBERFAZEZS

HED RIBR B KM 28R AR A
EmEHR-



Directors’ Report

EEEREE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
and leasehold land of the Group are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note
18 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the aggregate amounts
of revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
and largest customer represented approximately 45.6% and
38.7% of the Group’s total turnover, respectively. The purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers and largest
supplier of the Group were approximately 46.5% and 23.5% of
the Group's total purchase, respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, advertising income of
approximately HK$857,000 (which represents approximately
1.8%) of the Group’s total turnover related to sales to
connected parties, of which either Mr. YEUNG Ka Sing,
Carson, a substantial shareholder of the Company, or Mr.
MA Shui Cheong, an Executive Director of the Company has
deemed interests in these connected parties. Further details of
transactions with related parties are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

Saved as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware,
neither the Directors, their associates (within the meaning of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) nor those shareholders
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% in
the Company’s share capital had any interest in the five largest
customers and suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2012.
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Directors’ Report

ESEREE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company in office during the year and up to

the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. XIE Hai Yu

Mr. TIAN Bing Xin

Mr. DONG Bao Qing

Mr. XU Dao Bin

Mr. DENG Yu Hui

Mr. MA Shui Cheong

Mr. YU Wai Ying, Sammy

Mr. LAU Henry

Mr. WONG Ching Yip

Non-executive Director

Mr. IP Wing Lun

(appointed on 5 August 2011)

(appointed on 5 August 2011)

(appointed on 5 August 2011)

(appointed on 15 August 2011)

(appointed on 15 August 2011)

(resigned on 5 August 2011)

(resigned on 5 August 2011)

(resigned on 5 August 2011)

(resigned on 15 August 2011)
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Directors’ Report

EEEREE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Shang Ping (appointed on 5 August 2011)

Mr. XU Wei (appointed on 15 August 2011)

Mr. KONG Tze Wing

Mr. HUNG Yat Ming (resigned on 5 August 2011)

Mr. PAN Chik (resigned on 15 August 2011)

DIRECTOR SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors of the Company being proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2012, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors as referred to in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report

ESEREE

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their spouses
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2012, the persons or corporations (not being a
Director or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions (directly or indirectly) in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or who are substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or have otherwise notified to the
Company were as follows:

REREFIRHE ARRHEN B AT
MESEENLH REEFAREFL
B A M8 2 FRAMEBALR
A S AT A B AR B 2 Bt sl (B 75 1 &

N2
ZS o
T

FERR

NARIHERIEREBS NAEKREE
BT EFMRBEERRHZHE AR
Aal FHIALHAR (WIEEFHA
NAIEEBETHBAB) BEEARRRIRMH
HERGO Z#ERAR (EEEE)
AT

Long (L)/ Approximate

Short (S) No. of shares of percentage of

Name of shareholders Capacity position the Company held shareholding

#rL), BEAEAATE B R

% 3R A 7B g &% KR (S) R EE Bat

YEUNG Ka Sing, Carson Held by controlled (L) 261,473,945 13.26%
("Mr. Yeung”) Corporation (Note)

BR# ([HrE]) o N o 3 (L) 261,473,945 13.26%
(Hta)

Billion Wealth Group Limited  Beneficial owner (L) 261,473,945 13.26%
(“Billion Wealth™) (Note)

Billion Wealth Group Limited E#zi#EA A (L) 261,473,945 13.26%
([Billion Wealth |) (K1a2)
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EEEREE

Notes:

The 261,473,945 shares of the Company are held by Billion Wealth, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability. The entire issued
share capital of Billion Wealth is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung.
These 261,473,945 shares of the Company were originally held by Strategic
Media International Limited (“Strategic Media”), on 12 May 2010, all the shares
were taken over by Billion Wealth from Strategic Media by the execution of a
share charge, pursuant to a share charge agreement dated 23 April 2008 entered
between Billion Wealth and Strategic Media in relation with the loan facility of
HK$60,000,000 granted by Billion Wealth to the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, the Company
has not been notified by any person (other than the Directors
and chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which are required to be recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACT

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, which directly or indirectly, subsisted at
31 March 2012 or any time during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, none of Directors or controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any of
their respective associates had any interest in a business which
cause or may cause significant competition with the business of
the Group or had or might have any conflicts of interest with the
Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTING
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year ended 31 March 2012. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: Nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set forth on page 144 of
this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established to review the
Group’s financial reporting, internal controls, and corporate
governance and risk management matters and to make relevant
recommendation to the Board.

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Messrs. LIU Shang Ping (as the
chairman of the Audit Committee), KONG Tze Wing and XU
Wei.
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Directors’ Report

EEEREE

Mr. LIU Shang Ping and Mr. XU Wei have been appointed as
independent non-executive directors of the Company with
effect from 5 August 2011 and 15 August 2011, respectively,
to replace Mr. HUNG Yat Ming (resigned as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 5 August 2011) and Mr.
PAN Chik (resigned as independent non-executive director of
the Company on 15 August 2011) as members of the Audit
Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee performed duties
including reviewing the Group's financial statements, audit
findings, external auditor’s independence and the Group’s
accounting principles and practices.

The Group's annual results for the year ended 31 March
2012 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee is of the opinion that the financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012
comply with applicable accounting standards, GEM Listing Rules
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2012.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements were audited by BDO Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. BDO Limited as

auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

TIAN Bing Xin
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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Corporate Governance Report
A M~A$ﬁﬂ:

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in enhancing the
shareholders’ value.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and enhance the performance of the Group.

The Company has applied the code provisions as set out in
Appendix 15: “The Code on Corporate Governance Practices”
(the "CG Code"”) of the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 March 2012.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standards of dealings
regarding securities transactions by Directors as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. All of the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
as set out in the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
March 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance. The senior management was
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the day-to-day operations of the Group while reserving certain
key matters for the approval of the Board. In addition, the
Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
Committees. Further details of these committees are set out in
this report.
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Corporate Governance Report
A ﬁ'—nA*Eﬂ:

The Board

The Board currently consists of nine Directors including six
Executive Directors, and three Independent Non-executive

Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. XIE Hai Yu (Chairman)
Mr. TIAN Bing Xin

Mr. DONG Bao Qing

Mr. XU Dao Bin

Mr. DENG Yu Hui

Mr. MA Shui Cheong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Shang Ping
Mr. KONG Tze Wing
Mr. XU Wei

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships with each other. A balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure the existence of a
strong independency across the Board and to meet with the
recommended practice under the CG Code for the Board to have
at least one-third of its members comprises of independent non-
executive directors. The biographical information of the Directors
are set out on page 5 of this annual report under the section
headed “Biographical Information of Directors”.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. YIP Rossetti has been appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company since 28 September 2009 and ceased to be so

after 31 July 2011.

Mr. XIE Hai Yu has been appointed as the Chairman of the
Company on 5 August 2011.
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Corporate Governance Report
A M~A$ﬁﬂ:

Independent Non-executive Directors

The three Independent Non-executive Directors are persons of
high caliber. With their experiences gained from various sectors,
they provide strong supports towards the effective discharge of
their duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each Independent
Non-executive Director gives an annual confirmation of his
independence to the Company, and the Company considers
them to be independent under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to retirement at the first
general meeting after their appointment and thereafter subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and in
accordance with the Articles.

Confirmation of Independence

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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=g #"—‘-\A*&ﬂ:

Board Meetings

There was a total of fifteen Board meetings held during the year.
Attendance of individual Director at Board meetings held during
the year is as follows:

EESE3
EEgRNFRAERTETRARAGE-
1I%‘J§$B$¢Wﬁf’£§%2.ﬂﬁ%$ﬁﬂ
T

Number of attendance

Name of Director EENE R
Mr. XIE Hai Yu (Note 1) AEwmEE (KaET) 5/13
Mr. TIAN Bing Xin (Note 1) BR{E T % (Krat1) 713
Mr. DONG Bao Qing (Note 1) BEBEFRE (WiET) 3/13
Mr. XU Dao Bin (Note 2) HBWRE (Ka2) 2/11
Mr. DENG Yu Hui (Note 2) %B?Hﬁf%i (K15t2) 11711
Mr. MA Shui Cheong B4 14/15
Mr. YU Wai Ying, Sammy (Note 3) xR |Z§§5‘E$ (H15E3) 0/4
Mr. WONG Ching Yip (Note 3) FIEEESE & (M 7E3) 3/4
Mr. LAU Henry (Note 3) RmELRE (H:23) 3/4
Mr. LIU Shang Ping (Note 1) B A (HaET) 5/13
Mr. KONG Tze Wing L FEREAE 8/15
Mr. XU Wei (Note 2) % BEE(WiE2) 2/11
Mr. HUNG Yat Ming (Note 3) A ERREE (KaE3) 2/4
Mr. IP Wing Lun (Note 4) BiktmcE (Bit4) 4/5
Mr. PAN Chik (Note 4) & BEE (KHit4) 2/5
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Notes:

1. Mr. XIE Hai Yu, Mr. TIAN Bing Xin, and Mr. DONG Bao Qing were
appointed as Executive Directors and Mr. Liu Shang Ping was appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director on 5 August 2012.

2. Mr. XU Dao Bing and Mr. Deng Yu Hui were appointed as Executive
Directors and Mr. Xu Wei was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director on 15 August 2011.

3. Mr. WONG Ching Yip, Mr. YU Wai Ying Sammy, and Mr. Lau Henry resigned
as Executive Directors and Mr. HUNG Yat Ming resigned as Independent
Non-Executive Director on 5 August 2011.

4. Mr. IP Wing Lun resigned as Non-Executive Director and Mr. PAN Chi
resigned as Independent Non-Executive Director on 15 August 2011.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for
attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas
and other relevant information are provided to the Directors in
advance of Board meetings. All Directors are consulted to include
additional matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.
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Delegation by the Board

While at all times, the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees which
have been established by the Board to deal with different aspects
of the Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their
respective written terms of reference as approved by the Board,
these Board committees are governed by the Company’s articles
of association as well as the Board's policies and practices (in so
far as the same are not in conflict with the provisions contained
in the Articles).

With the new composition of members of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, the
Independent Non-executive Directors will be able to effectively
devote their time to perform the duties required by the
respective Board Committees.

Board Committees

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management
of the Company under the leadership of the Executive Directors.
Clear guidance has been made as to the matters that should
be reserved to the Board for its decision which include matters
on, inter alia, capital, finance and financial reporting, internal
controls, communication with shareholders, Board membership,
delegation of authority and corporate governance.
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Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Directors

During the year under review, the Company has adopted the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors who have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year under review.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting
("AGM") one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM. All Directors appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of shareholders after their appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the Nomination Committee on 27 March
2012, with written terms of reference in compliance with the
relevant Code Provisions to be effective on 1 April 2012. Its
written terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. LIU Shang
Ping (as the chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. KONG
Tze Wing and Mr. XU Wei.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Directors,
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on
appointment and re-appointment of Directors.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process
by making reference to the skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations required for the positions. All candidates must be
able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 5.01 and 5.02
of the GEM Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the
Board for approval.

As the Nomination Committee was established in March 2012,
during the year under review, no meeting was convened and
held by the Nomination Committee.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Emolument Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is to ensure the fairness
and competitiveness of total remuneration. The emoluments
of Executive Directors are determined based on the skills,
knowledge, individual performance as well as contributions,
the scope of responsibility and accountability of such Directors,
taking into consideration of the Company’s performance and
prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) is to ensure that the Non-executive Directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to
the Company’s affairs including their participation in respective
Board committees. The emoluments of Non-executive Directors
are determined with reference to their skills, experience,
knowledge, duties and market trends.

Remuneration Committee

The Board established the Remuneration Committee in March
2005, with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code Provisions (which were further reviewed by the Board in
27 March 2012). The revised written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for, inter alia,
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
emolument policy and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing such policy.
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. LIU Shang
Ping (as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr.
KONG Tze Wing, and Mr. XU Wei.

Mr. LIU Shang Ping and Mr. XU Wei have been appointed as
independent non-executive directors of the Company with
effect from 5 August 2011 and 15 August 2011, respectively,
to replace Mr. HUNG Yat Ming (resigned as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 5 August 2011) and Mr.
PAN Chik (resigned as independent non-executive director of the
Company on 15 August 2011) as members of the Remuneration
Committee.

During the year under review, no meeting of the Remuneration
Committee has been held.

On 30 June 2010, the shareholders approved the adoption of a
new share option scheme and termination of the then existing
share option scheme, which was adopted on 15 January 2002
(the "Old Scheme"”). No share option under the Old Scheme was
outstanding at 31 March 2011.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 30 June
2010. The purpose of the share option scheme is to enable the
Board, at its discretion, to grant options to eligible participants,
including the Directors, as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group.

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is entrusted with an overall responsibility of devising
the Company’s system of internal controls and conducting an
annual review of its effectiveness. This ensures that the Board
oversees and monitors the Group's overall financial position so
that the interests of the shareholders are well protected and
covered. The system of internal controls covers the areas of
financial, operational, compliance and risk management of the
Group’s business.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
of and dissemination of price-sensitive information:

1. the Group is fully aware of its obligations under the GEM
Listing Rules;

2. the Group conducts its affairs with close regards to the
“Guide on Disclosure of Price-sensitive Information” issued
by the Stock Exchange; and

3. through channels such as financial reporting and public
announcements, the Group has implemented and disclosed
its policy on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, non-
exclusionary distribution of information to the public.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
Provisions (which were further reviewed by the Board in 27
March 2012). The revised written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The duties of the Audit Committee include
reviewing the Company’s annual reports and quarterly financial
reports and providing advice and comments thereon to the
Board. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing
and supervising the Company’s financial reporting and internal
control procedures.
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The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. LIU Shang Ping (as the chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. KONG Tze Wing, and Mr. XU Wei.

The Group's audited annual results for the year ended 31 March
2012 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was
of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied with
the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that

the adequate disclosures have been made.

Six meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year
ended 31 March 2012. Attendance of the members is set out

below:
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Number of

attendance
Audit Committee Member EENE o X B
Mr. LIU Shang Ping (Note 1) Bl ok (Matr) 2/5
Mr. KONG Tze Wing (Note 1) LR (Matt) 6/6
Mr. XU Wei T Bi&E 3/5
Mr. HUNG Yat Ming (Note 2) A HBREE (Ka22) 0/1
Mr. PAN Chik (Note 2) & BEE (MF2) 2/2

Note:

1. Mr. LIU Shang Ping and Mr. Xu Wei were appointed as Independent Non-
executive Directors on 5 August 2011 and 15 August 2011, respectively.

2. Mr. HUNG Yat Ming and Mr. PAN Chik resigned as Independent Non-
executive Directors on 5 August 2011 and 15 August 2011, respectively.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditors
is set out below:

% R AT &

REBEER - B BAD TMAT AR
2 BERS R EERRE 2 e85
mF

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered iR AR % B EAER
HK$'000
BT T
Audit services EZ R 830
Non-audit services IEBIZ AR5 360
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE EEYMKBRRZERE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and in presenting the quarterly and annual financial statements
and announcements to shareholders, the Directors aim to
present a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company'’s position and prospects.

The Directors’ responsibilities in preparing financial statements
and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 38 to 42 of this annual report.

Communication with Shareholders

In order to provide more relevant information to our
shareholders, the Company has published on its website, the
composition of the Board committees as well as their respective
written terms of reference.

Specific enquiries from shareholders can be sent in writing to the
Company at our head office in Hong Kong or by email through
InvestorRelations@singpao.com.hk on the Company’s website.
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IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE : +852 2218 8288
15K : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 43 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2012,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence as explained below, we conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement. Because of the matters described in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, however, we were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(1) Scope limitation - borrowings under dispute

Included in the borrowings of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 March 2012 are borrowings of
approximately HK$23,644,000 and HK$14,129,000; and
as at 31 March 2011 were borrowings of approximately
HK$23,367,000 and HK$13,910,000, respectively due
to several parties. Included in the finance costs in the
statements of comprehensive income of the Group and the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2012 are accrued
interest expenses of approximately HK$277,000 and
HK$219,000; and for the year ended 31 March 2011 were
accrued interest expenses of approximately HK$277,000
and HK$219,000, respectively based on the amounts due
and the applicable interest rates. As discussed in Note 25(b)
to the consolidated financial statements, the Group and
the Company are in dispute with these parties over these
balances. We were unable to obtain representation from the
directors on the accuracy of these borrowings which were
carried forward since prior years. The directors consider that
there was either no formal agreement entered or there was
no evidence of such arrangement in the past. In addition,
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40

we were unable either to obtain direct confirmations
from these parties or other supporting evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the borrowings and interest
expenses are free from material misstatement because
these lenders were either no longer in contact with the
Group or did not reply to our confirmation requests. There
was no other satisfactory audit procedure that we could
adopt to satisfy ourselves as to whether the borrowings
and interest expenses were fairly stated, which would have
a consequential effect on net current liabilities and net
liabilities of the Group and the Company as at 31 March
2012 and their losses for the year then ended. We qualified
our opinion in respect of a similar limitation of scope in
our report dated 20 December 2011 for the year ended 31
March 2011. Therefore, the comparative amounts may not
be comparable and any adjustment to these amounts may
also have a consequential effect on the opening balance of
the accumulated losses of the Group and the Company at
1 April 2011 and their results for the year ended 31 March
2012.

Scope limitation — Appropriateness of using the
going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements

The Group sustained consolidated loss for the year of
HK$40,466,000 for the year ended 31 March 2012.
At 31 March 2012, the Group had consolidated net
current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
HK$381,292,000 and HK$468,090,000, respectively. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBARES

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors have adopted or planned to
adopt certain measures (the "Measures”) including, among
others, entering into negotiations with potential investors
in respect of possible capital injection arrangement into
the Group and taking steps to propose restructuring plans
for the Group in order to improve the Group’s financial
and cash flow positions and to maintain the Group as a
going concern. The Directors are of the opinion that the
Measures will be successfully implemented. The Directors
have prepared a cash flow forecast for the next twelve
months (the “Forecast”) based on certain underlying
assumptions including obtaining adequate funding from a
loan facility granted by a company owned by an executive
director (the “Lender”) and that the borrowings classified
as current portion of HK$381,951,000 from the substantial
shareholder, related parties and third parties (the “Loan
Providers”) will not be called for payment within the next
twelve months.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the
successful outcome of the Measures to be undertaken in
order to satisfy the Group’s working capital needs, improve
its cash flow position and address its capital deficiency.
However, due to the circumstances as further explained in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, we are
unable to obtain sufficient information from the Lender
to satisfy us that the Lender is able to provide the loan
facility nor have we received confirmation from the Loan
Providers that they undertake not to request payment of
the loans within the next twelve months. The directors
of the Company are taking steps to prepare restructuring
plans for the Group and negotiate with potential investors
in respect of possible capital injection arrangement into
the Group. However, these two measures had not yet
been concluded as of the date of approval of the financial
statements. Accordingly, we are unable to determine
whether the underlying assumptions of the Forecast are
valid and whether the capital injection and restructuring
plan can be successfully completed, and therefore whether
it is appropriate to use the going concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. There were no other
satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt in this
regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBEHRES

Should the use of the going concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financial statements be determined to
be inappropriate, adjustments might have to be made to
reduce the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities, respectively.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters described in the “Basis
for disclaimer of opinion” paragraphs, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Choi Man On

Practising Certificate number P02410
Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive INncome 7 e ear endea 31 wrarcn 2012
%%éﬁ”&é% BE—F——F=H=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-—fF —F——F
Notes HK$000 HK$°'000
i3 BEFTT BB F T

Turnover —F % 7 48,873 42,392
Cost of sales and services & R ARG A AN (40,849) (55,541)
Gross profit/(loss) wmA, (E518) 58 8,024 (13,149
Other revenue and other gain H A A K B At M & 8 2,704 1,659
Distribution costs BATAAR (256) (2,068)
Administrative and other TR Hp 8 2

operating expenses (27,567) (25,347)
Finance costs B F B AR 9 (23,371) (23,022)
Loss before income tax B 1S %1 Bl & 18 10 (40,466) (61,927)
Income tax PSR 11 - 11,611
Loss for the year FEEBE (40,466) (50,316)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wk A - -
Total comprehensive income FEZHWAEE

for the year (40,466) (50,316)
Loss for the year and total FEBBERARRQT

comprehensive income for HBBEARBLEER

the year attributable to FEWABRE

owners of the Company 15 (40,466) (50,316)
Loss per share BREE 16

Basic and diluted BERREE (2.05 centsfili) (2.55 centsflll)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position . .: 51y 201

%éﬂjﬁﬂﬁ)\ﬂl% R-F——F=F=1+—H

2012 2011
—F-=F —F——F
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
ik B TF T BB F T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M= B MR 17 2,394 2,697
Interest in an associate R—REBE QR
R w 19 - -
Deposits and prepayments e RIBFKIE 21 2,124 8,061
4,518 10,758
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 20 = 238
Trade and other receivables B NEMmEWRE 27 20,059 9,017
Cash and cash equivalents RehkHeFEIEHR 22 3,624 1,490
23,683 10,745
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings BE 25(a) 381,951 87,454
Trade payables, accruals and g5 RN IE
other payables ErER R
H &~ 5RIR 23 22,986 20,483
Taxation T1E 38 488
(404,975) (108,425)
Net current liabilities RBEERE (381,292) (97,680)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ¥ EZAERABAEE
LIABILITIES (376,774) (86,922)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings BE 25(a) 91,316 340,962
(91,316) (340,962)
NET LIABILITIES BEEE (468,090) (427,884)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital N 27 98,584 98,584
Reserves {1 28 (566,674) (526,468)
DEFICIENCY IN CAPITAL =N (468,090) (427,884)
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Statement of Financial Position . ..5: v 201

/E\Z“g%;ljtiﬂr% R-F——F=F=+—H

2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——F
Notes HKS$000 HK$'000
ok BT T BB F T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KRB AR ZER 18 = -
Current liabilities REBAE
Borrowings BE 25(a) 352,607 78,410
Accruals and other payables st ERA K
H b e S 3R0E 23 6,335 5,998
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE B B A Bl B 18 3,021 3,004
(361,963) (87,412)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ¥ ELFERRBER
LIABILITIES (361,963) (87,412)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings BE 25(a) 45,073 296,240
NET LIABILITIES BEFH (407,036) (383,652)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARARFEE
Share capital AR AR 27 98,584 98,584
Reserves (e 28(b) (505,620) (482,236)
DEFICIENCY IN CAPITAL BAE M (407,036) (383,652)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

20 June 2012.

R-ZEBE——FNA-tHEES=H
AR T B o

MA Shui Cheong TIAN Bing Xin
Bin 8 HRE
Director Director

EF EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in EqUIity s tejear endeo 31 march 2012

%é% %—E % Eb i% BE-—F——F=HA=1—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREE AL
Convertible
Share Share  note equity Shareholders’ Exchange Distributable Accumulated
capital premium reserve  contributions reserve reserve losses Total
TRRRE THAK
K& R EE ERRE BRRLE ERfRE 1 2RER @t
HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
EEFIT BETFT EEFIT BETT BT BETT BT BETT
At 1 April 2010 RZE-Z4MmA—-A 97,584 140,573 741 72,894 43 231,340 (929,593) (386,418)
Capital portion of advance from TERRBFELRHH

a substantial shareholder (Note 25(@)i)  (H7##25(a)0)) - - - 10,726 - - 10,726
Release of shareholders' contributions —ERE EHERE

resulted from change in terms of mELRR L E (Hi225060))

a shareholder's loan (Note 25(a)(1)) - - - (2,876) - - (2,876)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE 2 AMALE - - - - - - (50,316) (50,316)
Conversion of convertible note BRIRRER (H726)

(Note 26) 1,000 370 (370) - - - 1,000
Expiry of convertible note (Note 26) MEREREE (Hi26) - - (37) - - - 371 -
At 31 March 2011 and 1 April 2011 RZE——F=A=1+-Ak

“5-—5@A-AH 98,584 140,943 - 80,744 43 231,340 (979,538) (427,884)
Capital portion of advance from FTERFLFZEADH

a substantial shareholder (Note 25@)5)  (H7:225(3))) - - - 260 - - - 260
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ #E2EMALE - - - - - - (40,466) (40,466)
At 31 March 2012 RZE--F=A=t-H 98,584 140,943 - 81,004 43 231,340 (1,020,004) (468,090)
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conSOI idated Statement Of CaSh FIOWS For the year ended 31 March 2012

E——F=A=F—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-—fF —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Loss before income tax BRATSTRIEE (40,466) (61,927)
Adjustments for: EE
Depreciation e 723 821
Finance costs B T AR 19,534 13,936
Impairment loss on trade g 5 W IBRE
receivables &8 1,198 55
Impairment loss on AN FIERESR
prepayment 4,885 -
Imputed interest expense HihfEE 2 HE
on other borrowings MEFX 3,837 9,086
Reversal of other payables 1 [B] H A fE < 5RIB (201) (205)
Reversal of provision for 18 0] 750 18 51 R B
tax penalty - (628)
Gain on disposal of HEME BE KR
property, plant and A2 W
equipment (800) -
OPERATING LOSS BEFORE EEESEFHZ
CHANGES IN WORKING gepE
CAPITAL (11,290) (38,862)
Decrease/(increase) in FERL (3G m)
inventories 238 (238)
Increase in trade and other B 5 & H th FE U 5K I8
receivables H#n (11,188) (8,510)
Increase/(decrease) in trade G EMNFIE BT E
payables, accruals and FA R H A FE S 5RIB
other payables &g, Cfd) 2,704 (1,776)
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS E¥XFEAZRS (19,536) (49,386)
Interest paid EFLE (38) (352)
Tax paid NPT (450) -
NET CASH USED IN REXBAFEMAZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFH (20,024) (49,738)
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COHSOIidated Statement Of CaSh FIOWS For the year ended 31 March 2012

25" EE:%/)ILE%‘% #=

= =iy

2012 2011
—E-C—F —E—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETF T BB T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREXK
Payment for the purchase A HWEREB
of property, plant and A NE S
equipment (551) (244)
Proceed for disposal of HEWE - W%&Eﬁﬁ
property, plant and EIEET 8!
equipment 931 -
NET CASH GENERATED REEKELE(¥H)
FROM/(USED IN) ZIREFEE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 380 (244)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ELE=E i
Proceeds from borrowings BEMENIA 32,143 56,352
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (10,365) (10,507)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RBIEXKELZHSE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R 21,778 45,845
INCREASE/(DECREASE) HERBELEEEE
IN CASH AND CASH #wi, ORs)
EQUIVALENTS 2,134 (4,137)
CASH AND CASH REPNZRERES
EQUIVALENTS AT £EEEB
BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,490 5,627
CASH AND CASH RERZREERES
EQUIVALENTS AT £EEB
END OF YEAR 3,624 1,490
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 17 April 2012
and with the approval of the Registrar of Companies of
Cayman Islands and Registrar of Companies of Hong Kong
on 17 April 2012 and 11 May 2012, respectively, the name
of the Company has been changed from SMI Publishing
Group Limited to Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited (the
“Company”).

The Company is a public limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square Hutchins
Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. On 8 April 2012, the principal place of business
of the Company was changed from the 3rd Floor, CWG
Building, No. 3, A Kung Ngam Village Road, Hong Kong to
8th Floor, United Overseas Plaza, 11 Lap Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the publication
of newspapers and books and provisions of advertising and
promotion services.

NOteS tO the FinanCiaI Statements For the year ended 31 March 2012
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Notes tO the FinanCiaI Statements For the year ended 31 March 2012

MBHRME =

50

TFEZA=TF—HAIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

The Directors consider Billion Wealth Group Limited (”Billion
Wealth”), which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is the ultimate holding company and a substantial
shareholder of the Company with effect from 12 May 2010
and up to the end of the reporting period.

On 11 November 2011, a proposal was submitted to
the Stock Exchange for the resumption of trading in the
Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Up
to the date of this report, the Group is still in the process
of collecting more information in response to the enquiries
made by the Stock Exchange in connection with the
resumption proposal.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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NOteS tO the FinanCiaI Statements For the year ended 31 March 2012

/E\Z"i%#ﬁé% Bﬂ-%} BE—FE——F=A=1—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. REEE(F)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern (b) FEEERBFELE RS

assumption

These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

The Group sustained consolidated loss for the
year of approximately HK$40,466,000 (2011:
approximately HK$50,316,000) for the year ended
31 March 2012. At 31 March 2012, the Group
had consolidated net current liabilities and net
liabilities of approximately HK$381,292,000 (2011:
approximately HK$97,680,000) and HK$468,090,000
(2011: approximately HK$427,884,000), respectively.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

In the prior year, the Group were financially supported
by Billion Wealth. In July 2011, the shareholder of
Billion Wealth reported that he may be unable to
deal with the loans granted to the Group by Billion
Wealth and any other companies beneficially owned
by him and also unable to offer any new financial
support to the Group. In order to address this situation,
management has successfully obtained new financial
support from the Lender (as defined below).

AN B 5 8RR D AR IR I 52 A AR
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Notes tO the FinanCiaI Statements For the year ended 31 March 2012

Eﬂi%*ﬁ% Bﬂ-%I BE—F——F=-H=1—HILFZ

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (Continued)

In view of the liquidity problems faced by the Group,
the Directors have adopted or plan to adopt the
following measures in order to improve the Group’s
financial and cash flow positions and to maintain the

Group as a going concern:

(i) a loan facility of HK$100,000,000 was granted by
a company owned by an executive director (the
“Lender”) HK$8,100,000 of this loan facility was
utilised during the year. The loan facility granted is
mainly for the Group's working capital at present.
The Directors plan to seek further financial support,
when necessary, from the Lender to provide
adequate funds for the Group to meet its liabilities

as when they fall due in the future;

(i) the Directors have identified and have been
negotiating with potential investors for proposed

capital injection arrangements;

(iii) the Directors have adopted various cost control
measures to reduce general administrative

expenses and operating costs;
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NOteS tO the FinanCiaI Statements For the year ended 31 March 2012

/E\Z"i%#ﬁé% Bﬂ-%} BE—FE——F=A=1—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (Continued)

(iv) during the year, the Group started a new

2. WAEEE(K)

(b) FFIEEERFHALLERR
(&)

promotion services business relating to the
organisation of promotion events in Hong Kong
for overseas customers. The business is not capital
intensive and is expected to generate reasonable
income to the Group. Up to the date of these
financial statements, several other promotion
events are committed and other potential events

are under final stage negotiation;

In addition, the Group had entered into a
12-month based distribution agreement with an
independent distributor in the Peoples’ Republic
of China (“PRC") in connection to the distribution
of the Group’s daily newspaper into PRC. The
Directors believe that the distribution agreement
can be renewed without significant cost upon
expiry. The Group recorded more advertising
income contributed from PRC based customers and

advertising agents during the year; and

(v) the Directors have engaged professional (v)
consultants to propose restructuring plans for the

Group.
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Notes tO the FinanCiaI Statements For the year ended 31 March 2012

BRI ooe e nuee

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

54

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (Continued)

The Directors believe the current portion of borrowings
as stated in Note 25(a) shall not be called for repayment
by the respective loan providers within the next
twelve months because they are either a substantial
shareholder of the Company, related parties or other
third parties of which an amount of approximately
HK$15,349,000 are amounts being under dispute
as further detailed in Note 25(b). The Directors had
considered that the shareholder of Billion Wealth
is legally restricted to deal with his personal assets
because he is under prosecution by the court (the
“Prosecution”). Therefore, he has no right to extend
or defer repayment term advanced by Billion Wealth
nor to determine to call or not to call repayment.
The Directors are aware that the result of Prosecution
may have impact on the proposed restructuring plans
and consequently on the proposed capital injection
arrangements.

In the opinion of the Directors, upon successful
implementation of these measures, the Group will have
sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future working
capital and other financing requirements. The Directors
are of the opinion that the above measures will be
successfully implemented. Accordingly, the Directors are
of the view that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to successfully implement
the above measures and continue as a going concern,
it may be unable to continue realising its assets and
discharging its liabilities in the normal course of
business. Adjustments would have to be made to write-
down the values of the assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
the financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1

January 2011

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

Amendments to

HK(IFRIC) —
Interpretation 14

HK(IFRIC) —
Interpretation 19

HKAS 24 (Revised)

Improvements to HKFRSs
2010

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

Related Party Disclosures

The adoption of these new/revised standards and
interpretations has no significant impact on the Group's

financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

56

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group:

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 1 (Revised)

Amendments to
HKAS 1 (Revised)

Amendments to
HKAS 16
Amendments to
HKAS 32
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Disclosure — Transfers of
Financial Assets’

Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets?

Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive
Income?

Clarification of the
Requirements for
Comparative Information?

Classification of Servicing
Equipment?

Tax Effect of Distribution
to Holders of Equity
Instruments?

Financial Instruments?®

Consolidated Financial
Statements?

Annual Report 2012
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

Effective dates:

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2012

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015

Joint Agreements?

Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial

Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

58

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair
value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or
loss except for those non-trade equity investments,
which the entity will have a choice to recognise the
gains and losses in other comprehensive income.
HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. KB BUBHREERN([F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B EHREER]) (&)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b) EEMERERZHET,

but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether
or not that power is used in practice), exposure or
rights to variable returns from the investee and the
ability to use the power over the investee to affect
those returns. HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance on
the assessment of control. For example, the standard
introduces the concept of “de facto” control where an
investor can control an investee while holding less than
50% of the investee’s voting rights in circumstances
where its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant
size relative to the size and dispersion of those of
other individual shareholders to give it power over the
investee. Potential voting rights are considered in the
analysis of control only when these are substantive,
i.e. the holder has the practical ability to exercise
them. The standard explicitly requires an assessment
of whether an investor with decision making rights is
acting as principal or agent and also whether other
parties with decision making rights are acting as agents
of the investor. An agent is engaged to act on behalf
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3.

60

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. RN EBUMBHREEDN([F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) B EHREER]) (&)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b) EEMERERZHET,

but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

of and for the benefit of another party and therefore
does not control the investee when it exercises its
decision making authority. The implentation of HKFRS
10 may result in changes in those entities which are
regarded as being controlled by the Group and are
therefore consolidated in the financial statements. The
accounting requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on
other consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject
to certain transitional provisions.

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosures requirements about interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements. It also introduces
new disclosure requirements, including those related
to unconsolidated structured entities. The general
objective of the standard is to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a
reporting entity’s interests in other entities and the
effects of those interests on the reporting entity's
financial statements.

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. KB BUBHREERN([F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B EHREER]) (&)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b) EEMERERZHET,

but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs and
the directors so far concluded that the application of
these new/revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case
the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

62

(a)

(b)

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities in which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies, so
as to obtain benefits from their activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that are presently
exercisable are taken into account.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at cost
less any impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Annual Report 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FTESFTEHER (8&)

(Continued)

(c) Associate (c) BBE QT

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies. Associates are accounted for using
the equity method whereby they are initially recognised
at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are
adjusted for the Group's share of the post-acquisition
change in the associates’ net assets except that losses
in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against
the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate and
the entire carrying amount of the investment is subject
to impairment test, by comparing the carrying amount
with its recoverable amount, which is higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

64

(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method
at the following rates:

Over the shorter of
the lease term

Leasehold land and building

and 4%
Leasehold improvements 15%
Machinery 15%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%
Network and computer equipment 15%
Motor vehicles 15%

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(e)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
year in which the item is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs, including appropriate portions
of fixed and variable overhead expenses, are assigned
to inventories by the method most appropriate to the
particular class of inventory, with the majority being
valued on a first-in-first-out basis. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and cost necessary to
make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

66

(Continued)

(f) Impairment of assets excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assets (including
properties, plant and equipment under cost model
and investments in subsidiaries) to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have reduced.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
in profit and loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial assets

4. TESTHER (#)

(9) MBEE

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way of purchase and sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on trade
date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the
market concerned.

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables.

(i) Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise
principally through the provision of goods and
services to customers, and also incorporate other
types of contractual monetary assets. Loans and
receivables are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

68

(g) Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset
is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial assets (Continued)

4. TESTHER (#)

(9) MBEE (&)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss for loans and receivables is
recognised in profit or loss and directly reduces
the carrying amount of financial asset when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of financial asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When any part of financial
asset is determined as uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for the relevant
financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset, or

where appropriate, a shorter period.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for

the proceeds received.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instrument
issued by the Group

(M)

(i)

(iii)

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are
initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense recognised on an
effective yield basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial liabilities and equity instrument

issued by the Group (Continued)

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability,

or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(v) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group's obligations specified in
the relevant contracts are discharged, cancelled or

they expire.

(i) Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity

instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FTESFTEHER (8&)

(Continued)

() TRERRE (&)

(i) Convertible notes (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option
for the holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is
included in equity (convertible note equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company,
will remain in convertible note equity reserve until
the embedded option is exercised (in which case the
balance carried in convertible note equity reserve
will be transferred to share premium). Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance carried in convertible note equity reserve
will be released to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relates to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes
using the effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

74

()

(k)

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

(i) Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
as reported in the statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or
expenses that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period.
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4. TEEFHER (#)

()

(k)

BERIAREE

fis A= 52 B (A 38 25 9 =5 14 78 &
BEEESHEEERE METHE
BETRIES RS EM
OB R - Rlg R
BERBNSENAEER
A -

EKT@%%E?EZ«(/}#}(&
MER KB EEATEMG
T REBRERERIAR
& BRIEE £ LB M B

AT REMERRAR - RII'E Rl o o AR
B—FRIAZRAKRENHES
BEMEEFENEEES
B 3E B A 48 B A a i B AT
BEMRIE - B RITRRIR B EE R
HARBE -

BiIE

T 15 15t 9 S 5% B HA FE A A
IE& R TR Z AR o

(i) BNHEARLIR

BNEAFER IR T A &
Z FERT A AR ELAE o B
nﬁﬂmﬂﬁﬂ”Aiﬁ%
w2 mA - Th AR
REX A BERE M EF
[E P& R B 3k AT H0RL 2 MR
ASXFAXIER RHE—
HABREDARBEM
B IEE - AEEREVE
MIE 2 EETERBRR
i%*a%ﬁiﬁﬁt
BEETZMEGFE



NOteS tO the FinanCiaI Statements For the year ended 31 March 2012

/E\Z"i%#ﬁé% Bﬂ--ﬁi BE—FE——F=A=1—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Taxation (Continued)

(ii) Deferred tax

4. TESTHER (#)

(k) #E (&)

(i) IEIEFLIR

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part

of the asset to be recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

76

(k) Taxation (Continued)

(ii) Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associate, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FTESFTEHER (8&)

(Continued)

S

(I) Foreign currencies ()

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operates (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling
at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

—E-CFFR

SEER X HWAE
ERECEIERERRBL
B8 ([eeE® ) ANz E
BatE AIREER SR ZE
RN ASNESHEZ B 1T
BERRBE HHREHRE
RIBE RS EEARILIA
SNBEHEZIFER AR ZE
EANBEEREAMZER
EHBRE o LAINEIRIE S AN
AFBZIFEBIHBBAEN
‘e

HEEKHARMEEERE
BFELAZERZR RNEE
HHARRIE R R - BRI E
AAREBEARZIEEHIR
AESZELZH;TANE
ZBRHEA - EREHREHR
Yo as R B B B A 2 T M s
PR Z JFERIAE BT E
H 2 ZRAIRIN REFBER
T ERERTREM 2K

Sz 2
=R o

RBEREEBRAA 77



Notes tO the FinanCiaI Statements For the year ended 31 March 2012

Eji%ﬁ‘%% Bﬂ-%I BE—F——F=-H=1—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

78

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

(Continued)

(I) Foreign currencies (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities
of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling
at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve (attributed to minority interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of
group entities’ separate financial statements on the
translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employees’ benefits

(i) Short-term benefits

4. TESTHER (#)

(m) EEEF

() =HEN

(i)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leaves and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payments or
settlements are deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
value.

Pension obligations

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme as required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
are charged to profit or loss when incurred. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contribution has been made.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and deposits held at call with banks, and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

80

(Continued)

(o) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

As lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
lease commitment is shown as a liability. Lease
payments are analysed between capital and interest.
The interest element is charged to profit or loss over
the period of the lease and is calculated so that it
represents a constant proportion of the lease liability.
The capital element reduces the balance owed to the
lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over
the term of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. TESTHER (#)

(p) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced
for estimated customer returns, rebates and other
similar allowances.

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of newspapers, magazines and books are
recognised when newspapers, magazines and
books are delivered and title has passed.

Advertising revenue is recognised on the relevant
publication date of the Group’s newspapers and
magazines.

Advertising revenue is also derived from the sales
of advertisements and sponsorships on the Group's
website. Advertising revenue is recognised over the
period in which the advertisements are displayed,
provided that no significant obligation remains and
collection of the receivable is reasonably assured.

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued
on a timely basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable.

Services income is recognised when the services are
provided.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

82

(q) Barter transactions

(r)

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

When goods or services are exchanged or swapped for
dissimilar goods or services, the exchange is regarded
as a transaction which generates revenue and barter
revenue and expenses are recognised. Barter revenue
and expenses are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, adjusted by the amount
of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. When the
fair value of the goods or services received cannot be
measured reliably, barter revenue and expenses are
measured at the fair value of the goods or services
given up, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash
equivalents transferred.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family

is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

Annual Report 2012
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b)
following conditions apply:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

—E-—FFR

4. TESTHER (#)
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4.

5.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. The key assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below:

(a) Going concern

Management makes an assessment of the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern when preparing
the financial statements. The Group is dependent
upon the successful implementation and outcome of
the Measure as set forth in Note 2 in order to meet
the Group’s future working capital and financing
requirements.

In assessing whether or not the going concern
assumption is appropriate, management takes into
account all available information about the future,
which is at least but is not limited to, twelve months
from the reporting date of the financial statements.

If the Group were unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made in the
financial statements to write down the values of the
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of
these adjustments has not yet been reflected in the
financial statements.

5.
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5.

86

5. BRETTHERMETTEE
REzEEZRR (&)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b) M¥ - -BMERREZAFH

(b) Useful lives and residual values of property,

plant and equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives and residual
values of its property, plant and equipment based
on the period over which the assets are expected to
be available for use. The estimated useful lives and
residual values of the property, plant and equipment
are reviewed annually and updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and
tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal
or other limits on the use of the assets. In addition,
the Group's estimation of the useful lives and residual
values of its property, plant and equipment is based on
its collective assessment of industry practice, internal
technical evaluation and experience with similar
assets. It is possible, however, that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in
those estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would be affected by changes
in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the
estimated useful lives and residual value of the Group's
property, plant and equipment would increase its
recorded depreciation expenses and decrease its non-
current assets.

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

5. BRETHERMETTRE
REzEERR (&)

(o) W% BERRBREEE

(c) Impairment loss for property, plant and

equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and
equipment is recognised for the amount by which
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of the assets, or, where
appropriate, the cash generating unit to which they
belong, is the higher of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. The recoverable amounts are
determined based on fair value less costs to sell which
are based on the best information available to reflect
the amount obtainable at the end of reporting period,
from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties,
after deducting the costs of disposal.

For the estimation of value in use, the Group’s
management estimates future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and chooses a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

88

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(d) Impairment losses for bad and doubtful

accounts

The policy for impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of accounts on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer. If the financial conditions of customers
of the Group were to deteriorate, thus resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances for impairment losses may be
required.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group operates one business segment, which is the
publication of newspapers, and books as well as provisions
of advertising and promotion services and therefore, no
further business segment analysis is presented.

The Group's revenue from external customers located
in Hong Kong and PRC amounting to approximately
HK$29,937,000 (2011: approximately HK$42,392,000) and
HK$18,936,000 (2011: Nil), respectively.

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZHEHR (&)
All operating assets of the Group during the years ended 31 AEBEREBZE_T—Z_FEK=F
March 2012 and 2011 were substantially located in Hong ——F=ZA=t—HLEFEZZE
Kong. A EEEBRRNIBAOUNEE

Revenue of operation of approximately HK$18,936,000
(2011: approximately HK$6,032,000) was derived from
advertising sales to a single customer.

TURNOVER

Turnover, which is also revenue, represents the gross
proceeds received and receivable derived from the
publication of newspapers and books as well as provisions of
advertising and promotion services and are summarised as
follows:

4974 118,936,000 (—Z & ——
F  4978%6,032,0007T ) 7 & E U
ARERE—FFHERES -

LRE (TRAMA) $8 3L th FR ¥R =

K ERE AR RS N B AR
Z B K W R IR AR S a0 T

2012 2011

—E-—F —T——%F

HK$000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Sale of newspapers and books HERENREFHE 14,213 17,050
Advertising income BEEHA 34,549 25,342
Service income AR 75 A 111 -
48,873 42,392

Included in advertising income is an amount of
approximately HK$1,373,000 (2011: approximately
HK$3,158,000) in respect of barter transactions entered into
during the year.

BEEWRABRERFEANELSHE
49 /78 #1,373,000 (—ZZE——
4 #)7853,158,0007T ) Z LA 5
YR 5 o
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8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER GAIN 8. HMtWARE MKz
2012 2011
—E—-—fF —E——fF
HK$°000 HK$°000
B F T BB F T
Other revenue: HMUA -
Reversal of provision for tax penalty B[O B 18 S KB E - 628
Reversal of other payables 13 5] H A & < BRIE 201 205
Sundry income MIBA 1,703 826
1,904 1,659
Other gain: o g
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  KBER
and equipment Wz W 800 -
2,704 1,659
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BMBRAE
2012 2011
—E-CZF —E——F
HKS$'000 HK$°'000
BEFT BT T
Interest on other borrowings wholly AR THRBESEE
repayable: ZEMBERNE:
— within five years —hFER 16,621 10,941
— after five years —hFi& 2,913 2,909
Effective interest expenses on AR IR 2 B IR
convertible note (Note 26) MEF 2 (Hit26) - 86
Effective interest expenses on HmEE 2 B
other borrowings (Note 25(a)(i)) FER
(Hat25(a)i)) 3,837 9,086
23,371 23,022

90 Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited
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10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging:

10. FREF BB RIS 1R

B P15 B A B 1R T & F0 Bk T 51 %

THRGH -
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$000 HK$000
BEFTT BB F T
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 830 1,150
Depreciation (Note 17) e (Wit17) 723 821
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 & Uk 7118 BB &5 18
(Note 21(b)) (Htzt21)) 1,198 55
Impairment loss on deposits and Ee BN FRIBERE
prepayments (Note 21) & (Hitz1) 4,885 -
Employee benefit expenses (including  {& E & F|f
Directors’ emoluments) (BIEEEMT)
— salaries, wages and other benefits —#Fe 18K
HAitb g 7 22,738 28,822
— contributions to defined —E R HFRIK
contribution retirement scheme ETElZ R 915 1,197
Minimum lease payments under REKEHEZ
operating leases on SEMERRK
— machinery — M 2s 256 255
— leasehold land and buildings — e+ RET 5,809 9,092
— motor vehicles — "8 127 245
ZEZFFR KBEEKEBEERAQA 91
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11. INCOME TAX 1. FREH

(@) Income tax credit in the consolidated statement of (@) sFALGEEERERAZFT

comprehensive income represents: BHREE:
2012 2011
—E-—fF —FE——F
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BB F T

Hong Kong profits tax BEEMNFH
— over-provision in respect of —BAEFEZ
prior years A RE - (11,602)
Deferred tax (Note 24(a)) RIERIE (Hf5t24(a)) - (9)
- (11,611)
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax (2011: Nil) has MR ARNEBRARNFE I &EE
been provided as the Group has no assessable profit B FERR T N - L SR
generated during the year. EENGENBEERE (T ——
Fom|)o

In prior year, an over-provision of income tax payable of RBEFE TREBRBEB
approximately HK$11,602,000 was recognised in the (MBI —HM & =
profit or loss after a dispute was settled with the Inland A ERaPRAR
Revenue Department (the “IRD"). NHEHBREBEREOBE

11,602,0007T °
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11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 1. FRE8 (&
(b) The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the by REEHEBEHREITHEHSFE
accounting loss as follows: BHERNOT:
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——F
HK$000 HK$000
BT T JEET T
Loss before income tax Br BT 1S R Al & 18 (40,466) (61,927)
Taxation calculated at Hong Kong TE%?%?'J/E 716.5%
profits tax rate of 16.5% ME(ZT——%F:
(2011: 16.5%) 16.5% ) FAEZHIA (6,677) (10,218)
Tax effect of non-deductible TR R = 2 B
expenses B 2,083 1,548
Tax effect of non-taxable income  FAJ R T UL A 2 FiIE
B - (104)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RIERZ KRB ABIE
not recognised BREZMIEBLE 4,759 8,765
Tax effect of utilisation of unused B BEFE RER
tax losses not recognised in ZARBARIESE
prior years 2B E (165) -
Over-provision in previous years BEFE 2 BRERE - (11,602)
Taxation for the year REERIA - (11,611)

12. DIVIDEND

No dividends have been paid or declared (2011: Nil) by the

Company during the year.

12.RE

ARRBNFERLE S HRE KK

B(ZT——F:8])-

—E-—FFR
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

94

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

BE-Z--_F=-H=t+-HLEE

13.EEM<

EEMERBAIER EHARAK
ERRAEDIFE161FRENT

Year ended 31 March 2012

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

Contributions
Salaries,  to defined
wages contribution
Directors’ and other  retirement
fees benefits scheme Total
¢ EREMN
TER RIKGTE
EEnd HitngF Al @t
HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$'000
BYETT BYETT BEFTT BYFT
Executive Directors HITES
Xie Hai Yu (Note 1) @a (Hriz1) 7 - - 7
Tian Bing Xin (Note 1) BT (A1) - 250 - 250
Dong Bao Qing (Note 1) EE5 (M:1) 7 - - 7
Xu Dao Bin (Note 2) ®REW (WiE2) 7 - - 7
Deng Yu Hui (Note 2) BFE (f1i22) 7 — - 7
Ma Shui Cheong* She* - 600 12 612
Yu Wai Ying, Sammy (Note 3) X (#1:23) - = - -
Lau Henry (Note 3) 2iE (H53) - - - -
Wong Ching Yip (Note 3) FIEEE (F75#3) - - - -
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
lp Wing Lun (Note 4) BXfm (Hita) - o - -
Independent Non-Executive ~BIFHTEES
Directors
Kong Tsz Wing LT % 120 - - 120
Liu Shang Ping (Note 1) 2ImF (Hiat) 7 - - 7
Xu Wei (Note 2) " BHHE2) 7 - - 7
Pan Chik (Note 4) & B(W34) - - - -
Hung Yat Ming (Note 3) SHEA (H53) 40 - - 40
Chief Executive Officer THER
Yip Chung Tam Ling, Rossetti ¥ ¥ (#f7£5)
(Note 5) - 280 4 284
202 1,130 16 1,348
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 13.EEME (E)

Year ended 31 March 2011
BE2-_T——F=P=1—BIFE

Contributions

Salaries, to defined

wages  contribution

Directors’ and other retirement
fees benefits scheme Total

Fe- ERMT

T8k RIRGTE
EZHE Hinsgr 2R @5t

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BETT  BETT  EBETT BRI

Executive Directors HTES
Ma Shui Cheong* She* - 531 11 542
Yu Wai Ying, Sammy RER - - - -
Wong Yue Kwan, Alan®# T 165 - - 165
Lau Henry 2HE - - - -
Wong Ching Yip® T IEEe 100 - - 100
Non-Executive Directors FYTES
Ip Wing Lun® Bxtwe 60 - - 60
Wong Chi Fai, Theodore® HEEH 15 - - 15

Independent Non-Executive ~BYEHTEES

Directors

Kong Tsz Wing PSS 120 - - 120
Pan Chike & 1Ee 60 - - 60
Hung Yat Ming A 8 120 - - 120
Wong Ching Yip* T IE R 20 - - 20
Wong Ka Chun, Carson*@ AR e 15 - - 15

Chief Executive Officer THAR
Yip Chung Tam Ling, Rossetti ¥ % - 840 12 852

675 1,371 23 2,069
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13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

96

Notes:

##

Xie Hai Yu, Tian Bing Xin and Dong Bao Qing were appointed as
executive directors of the Company as at 5 August 2011. On the
same date, Liu Shang Ping was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company.

Deng Yu Hui and Xu Dao Bin were appointed as executive directors of
the Company as at 15 August 2011. On the same date, Xu Wei was
appointed as independent non-executive director of the Company.

Yu Wai Ying Sammy, Lau Henry and Wong Ching Yip resigned as
executive directors of the Company as at 5 August 2011. On the
same date, Hung Yat Ming resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company.

Ip Wing Lun and Pan Chik resigned as non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the Company on 15 August
2011, respectively.

Yip Chung Tam Ling, Rossetti was a chief executive officer of the
Company who was not a director of the Company. She resigned from
her position as the chief executive officer of the Company on 31 July
2011.

Appointed on 13 May 2010

Mr. Wong Ching Yip was re-designated as an executive director on 13
May 2010

Retired as directors on 30 June 2010

Director’s fee waived by the Director during the year

During the year, except for a compensation for loss of office
of approximately HK$116,000 (2011: Nil) was paid to Ms.
Yip Chung Tam Ling, Rossetti, no emolument or incentive

payment was paid to the Directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. In prior year, four directors waived their emoluments
of, in aggregate, approximately HK$235,000.

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

Annual Report 2012

13.EE<E (E&)

ot

##

e AREREEER T ——
FAALBEZERARRRNITE
Z-RAA HHFEZER/ARRE
SMIEHITESE

BFELGFENR T ——F/\H
THREREAARRRANTEE R
B REEZEARRRELIFNT
B

REE BWERIEENR -T——
FARARBHERRFTNTEE R
By St B BRBHEAR R RIBILIFMITE
S

B kEBR -_Z——F /\A+1
Ao RIBHERDRIEMITE S RIBL
FMITES-

WIARBERE 2 ERRBARBITH
BEEN-_T——FtHA=1—H
BHEAR R BT EIRTS -

R-F-—FFRA+=ZHEZE
FIFBFEAR —FE—FFLH+=H
FEHERPITEE
R-FB—FFENA=1THREEFE
*

EERFARREEHT

FR - BRRAEBRZLEIHLEE
116,000 (ZZE——4F  #)E

ABERAES
o] A

N ARNER BN S THE
TR TEF ARSI

AREESEABR 2 @E - KRB
AFEE WEEEWNEHFHH &
{E #9785 #235,0007T °



NOteS tO the FinanCiaI Statements For the year ended 31 March 2012

EZH%*E%Z Bﬂ--ﬁi BE—FE——F=A=1—HIFE

13.

14.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

As at 31 March 2012 and 2011, no share option was held
by the Directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The details of the share options are disclosed in Note 32.

FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2011: one) was a Director of the Company
whose emolument is included in Note 13 above. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2011: four) highest paid
non-director individuals were as follows:

13.

14.

EEME (&)

NR-_E——FR —_F——HF=H
—t+—B BMEEEFEARAEK
ERTEI N A B - BEIE 2 5F
IS AMTFE321 55 -

EEEEHFAL

AEBETEBEHA LR BE
H(ZB——F —R)ARAE
£ 2 EBR EXHES -
HHmE (B ——F mE) %
EFRSHFALZBEMT

2012 2011
—E--F —EF——F
HKS$000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IE8M

HfbEH 1,898 2,446

Contributions to defined contribution — FZEMHFEERETE 2
retirement scheme H 12 36
1,910 2,482

Their emoluments were all within the HK$Nil to
HK$1,000,000 band.

There was no amount paid during the years ended 31
March 2012 and 2011 to the four (2011: four) highest paid
non-director individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

HEMS 2N TEEEZTLEHE
#:1,000,0007T A ©

HE " T——HERKR-FT——F=
A=T—HLFE XEEWHES
NEAKETFZOAE(ZE——
FMOEB)FEEZRFATUR
SIMAREE S AEABER 2 fE -
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15. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company includes a loss of approximately HK$27,125,000
(2011: approximately HK$23,219,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

16. LOSS PER SHARE

98

(a)

(b)

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$40,466,000 (2011: approximately
HK$50,316,000) and the weighted average number of
1,971,685,971 (2011: 1,970,151,724) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share amounts for the current and prior
years are the same as the basic loss per share amounts.
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the current year. In the prior year, the
potential ordinary shares outstanding had an anti-
dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.

Annual Report 2012

15. XD AHER ABIGE R

RARHBARGGEERERE
ERAARABERERAEIE 2B
B#)8%27,125,000 (—F——
G 4978%23,219,0007T ) °

16. SR E5 1B

(a) BREXEE

ERERNBEIDUERADF
B ABHEEBEBEBOBE
40,466,0007T (—F——%:
#77%5 ¥50,316,00070 ) & F
NEZETEBAR 2 NEFH
A% £71,971,685,971& (=&
——%:1,970,151,7240% ) 5+

orad
=]
>t

o

(b) EREEFER

REZEMBEFE 2 RS
BEEcERESRENER
SRR - AEERAFEL
BERTECESEAR R
BEFEZCETEEESR
B ERENEIRAA RE
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 9% - BERRKE

The Group rE
Furniture, Network
Leasehold fixtures and
land and Leasehold and computer Motor
building  improvements Machinery equipment equipment vehicles Total
RELH BENF B [ER
REF %8 13 RERRE EHRE AE @t
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT FETT FHFT FRFT ERTFT EETT BT
Cost BA
At 1 April 2010 WZE-TERA-A 246 2,249 74,815 3,17 13,009 - 93,490
Additions bk - - - 12 232 - 244
Disposal HE - - - - (5) - (5
At 31 March 2011 RZE-——F=A=1+-H
and 1 April 2011 h=E-—5NA-H 246 2,249 74,815 3,183 13,236 - 93,729
Additions b - = - " 278 262 551
Disposal HE - - (74,815) - (131) - (74,946)
At 31 March 2012 RZZ--§=A=1-H 246 2,49 - 3,194 13,383 262 19,334
Accumulated depreciationand R FEREE
impairment
At 1 April 2010 RZE-ZEMA-H 65 1,685 74,815 2,707 10,944 - 90,216
Charge for the year FEIM 6 337 - 104 374 - 821
Disposal HE - - - - (5) - (5)
At 31 March 2011 RZZ-——FZA=1-H
and 1 April 2011 R=T-—5MA-A n 2,022 74,815 2811 11313 - 91,032
Charge for the year FEXH 11 27 - 90 385 10 723
Disposaliwitten off HE /W - - (74,815) - - - (74,815)
At 31 March 2012 RZE-ZF=A=+-H 82 2,249 - 2,901 11,698 10 16,940
Net carrying value REEE
At 31 March 2012 RZE-ZF=A=+-H 164 - - 293 1,685 252 2,3%
At 31 March 2011 RZE-——F=A=1+-H 175 227 - 372 1,923 - 2,697
—E-CFFR HBREESEEERAQF 99
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

100

18. R B D A

The Company

AAF
2012 2011
—E—-—fF —E——fF
HKS$000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRR D - AN - -
Less: Impairment loss R OREEE - -
Due from subsidiaries (Note (b)) N EENGIE ]
(Htit®)) 792,207 795,688
Less: allowance for doubtful debts JB - REREHE
(Note (c)) (Haz) (792,207) (795,688)
Due to subsidiaries (Note (d)) N NGIE S
(Wit (d)) B2y (3,004)
(3,021) (3,004)

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The table below lists the principal subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the

year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.

The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

Place/Country

of incorporation

Particulars
of issued and

18. RMiB ARl fExE (&)

Bt

(a) TRIMEERREIBFEFEREA
FERAEBEEFETEZRDZA

NRAIEEMBAF -

b= AEBIN

RHERMENAREER EFRA
O EA B AR F S EEE RSB

DIT&K

Percentage of
equity interests
attributable

Name of company and operation paid-up capital  to the Company Principal activities
AR 2RTR EAT M
NGRS geEwy HR BRRAKFEE RERDL TEXHB
Direct Indirect
HiE o 4

First Brilliant Limited British Virgin Us$1 100 - Investment holding

Islands (“BVI")/

Hong Kong
First Brilliant Limited HEELESE/ (E 100 - REER

B8
Actiwater Resources Limited BVI/Hong Kong Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Actiwater Resources Limited EBRA#HE/ 17T - 100 REER

Bt
Fidelity Capital Resources Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Provision of management

services

HWEERBRAT &R BT 100 - REEERS
Komatic International Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1 - 100  Investment holding
Komatic International Limited HERZES/ (B - 100 LEEK

B8
Optima Media Holding Limited BVI/Hong Kong Us$100 - 100 Investment holding
Optima Media Holding Limited EBRA#HE/ 100 7T - 100 HREERK

0
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. R A AR (&)

Notes: (Continued) Mt (48)

(@) (Continued) (&

(a)

Percentage of

Name of company

Place/Country
of incorporation
and operation

Particulars
of issued and
paid-up capital

equity interests
attributable
to the Company

Principal activities

SR AR R BBITK AR
DREE T ER BERAFE BERDL TEEHB
Direct Indirect
B k3

Sing Pao Newspaper Assets Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Holding of property, plant

and equipment
RIRRTIEERRAF N BT - 100 HEVE BERERE
Sing Pao Newspaper (BVI) Limited BVI/Hong Kong Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Sing Pao Newspaper (BVI) Limited EBELHE (E - 100 HEER

o
Sing Pao Newspaper Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Newspaper publication
PRI B R A F EE BT - 100 HhR#KE
Sing Pao Publishing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Book publication
PR R At B R A A N0 B2 - 100 [HiRE#HE
Sing Pao Newspaper Management Hong Kong HK$2 - 100  Provision of management
Limited services

KRR TIERBRAR N 27T - 100 RHUEERS
Sing Pao Website Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Website holding and

magazine publication
KRB AR 2 A AE BT 100 - RBEBMRERER
Wah Fung Book Store Limited Hong Kong HK$796,000 - 100  Property holding
ERERERAA EE ##796,0007T - 100 ®HEVE

102  Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

Name of company

Place/Country
of incorporation
and operation

Particulars
of issued and
paid-up capital

Hiat: ()

(@ (&)

Percentage of

equity interests

attributable

to the Company

18. R B A AR (&)

Principal activities

M AR R BBITK AR
DREE T ER HERAFHE READL TEEHB
Direct Indirect
B k3
Huge Harvest Global Enterprise Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong us$1 100 - Investment holding
Huge Harvest Global Enterprise Limited EBEXZEE,/ (E 100 - REERR
B8
Huge Harvest Media Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
ELEHEERAA BE BEIT - 100 ®EZK
Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of promotion
services
RBEEEEFRAR E BT - 100 REHEERD

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the Directors,

no demand for repayment will be made by the Company in the next

twelve months. Accordingly, the amounts are shown as non-current.

—E-—FFR

(b) FEMWHIE R

ARBETEER AB2

EREEEERN -BEERR AR
ABARART ZEARNEE-H
bt R ERIBIAIERE IR o

B EREEBRAA
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

() Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts

18. RMIB Al iz (&)

Hiat: (#&)

(c)

RERERY

The Company

AATF
2012 2011
—E—CfF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T B F T
At beginning of year NG 795,688 750,330
(Reversal of)/Impairment losses recognised (@) /2 MR EEE (3,481) 45,358
At end of year RER 792,207 795,688

An aggregate accumulated allowance for amounts due from

subsidiaries of approximately HK$792,207,000 (2011: approximately
HK$795,688,000) was recognised as at 31 March 2012 because the
related recoverable amounts of the amounts due from subsidiaries

with reference to the values of the respective subsidiaries were

estimated to be less than their carrying amounts. Accordingly, the

carrying amounts of the related amounts due are reduced to their

recoverable amounts as at 31 March 2012 and 2011.

(d)

repayable on demand.

The amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, interest-free and

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

104

(d)

RZE—ZF=ZA=+—H0 BARZ
EZWBRAREEZERMER R
FRIE 2 ABRA AT U Bl € Sl AR AR
BREE KRB ARTZEZAR
TER R BB 15792,207,0007T
( ZZF——F:49%51%795,688,000
T) Al RZE—ZFRZZF
——®=A=+—8 HABIHHE
ZEHEmMEREEATMESEE-

N E AR FIRTEERR BB R
C:3

R
BRIRBREE-

19. R—EBHEQIT 2B

The Group
rEH
2012 2011
—F-=F —F——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Share of net assets

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

I BEFE
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19. A—EEE AT 2R (F)

On 27 March 2012, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with the fellow joint venture partner
of the associate, 3t R &, to dispose of its entire equity
interests in It F & in consideration of RMB3,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,636,000) in cash. The
disposal of bt H & was not yet completed as at the report
date of this financial statements.

Upon the completion of the disposal, a gain on disposal
of approximately HK$3,636,000 is to be recognised in the
profit or loss. In the opinion of the Directors, no disclosure
on the non-current assets held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” has been made because the
associate is not material to the Group.

Particulars of the Group’s associate, which is an unlisted
corporate entity, as at 31 March 2012 are as follows:

R-ZB——F=A=-++tH X&
EHEBE N ZAEELEAREE
A RP B ES s AHE
HMt R T 228 REA
{4 AR %3,000,0007T (4485
% 3,636,0007T ) ° RSB 5
=B EHRHELRFPEZER

FEAHER HEWRELBE
3,636,000 NIEE R -EE
RE BRZEE R RYARERM
FEUAEE WA EREBEEEHE
HEAERIEST [#HELE 23R
HEEMCRIEKEEER ] BLEH
BEREZIERBDEEIFLIETE -

R-ZE——F=A=+—H" &
B E AR (BIELTARAREE)
ZEEIBIMT

A

[l

Interest held
Form of Country of indirectly
business incorporation Paid up by the  Principal
Name of company  structure and operation capital Company  activity
RAFMEE
NEER EBRBEYA AL REEER BRRA  BEER IEXR
ERREEEHE  Sino-foreign-owned PRC RMBS,000,000 25%  Provision of networking
EBRMERAR  equity joint venture and information
("ERPE" services in the PRC
ERPEEGRE  PIRELR TE AR¥5,000,0007 5% RPEREBER
EERMARRR &R
([ExHE])
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19. R—EBE AR 2 EzE (&)
The summarised financial information of the Group's AEEBERARIBE_T—_F
associate for the year ended 31 March 2012 is set out — A=+ BLEFEZMEER
below: 3T -

2012 2011
—E-C=F —F——F
HK$000 HK$°000
B F T JEIT T
Total assets BERRE 7,355 7,265
Total liabilities BEAR (20,282) (15,052)
Equity 1% (12,927) (7,787)
Turnover LT 994 1,466
Loss for the year REEEE (4,854) (4,330)
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of $’EIEZQ¢E?’EEU,\J'ETHE§H9“*
losses of the associate. The amounts of unrecognised share NAIZEE REREIEZEE R
of the associate, extracted from the relevant management ARAFERRFT 228 (Hi
accounts of the associate, both for the year and BBtE AR HEAEEERE )N
cumulatively are as follows: N
2012 2011
—E-CZF —E——F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Unrecognised share of losses of REERERIE
the associate for the year By & AR EE 1,214 1,083
Accumulated unrecognised share of REt RHER B
losses of the associate B N RIEE 3,161 1,947
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21.

20. INVENTORIES 20. 7 &
The Group
REH
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——F
HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Printing materials EN il 47 44 - 238
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ES R HEMEWRIE
The Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E--F —E——%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
kA BT T BB T
Trade receivables =) & QE 21,088 7,619
Less: allowance for doubtful B REREEE
debts (b) (3,948) (2,750)
(a) 17,140 4,869
Other receivables H fth & We FR IR 45 206
Deposits and prepayments* e MIBRRIE* 4,998 9,971
Amount due from a related JE UL — e R 5E A A
company FRIA (d) - 2,032
22,183 17,078
Less: Non-current portion O FEMENEL (2,124) (8,061)
20,059 9,017
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

108

The amount mainly represents prepayments for the decoration of the
new office premises which was in use subsequent to the end of the
reporting period. In the prior year, the amount mainly represented
deposits and prepayments for the setting up of a factory for the
printing business, of which approximately HK$4,885,000 was
impaired during the year due to change of development plan of the
Group.

Notes:

(a)

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

Aging analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately HK$3,948,000 (2011:
approximately HK$2,750,000), with the following aging analysis
based on invoice date as of the end of reporting period:

21. EZ R EHMEWRFIR (&)

ZEeEEIBATBAEDE (RRE
HREFRBER) RIS ZEARIE
RBEFE ZeBEEARNMER
ZERBIES RIEMNRIE  HP Q5K
4,885,0007T B 7 = B 0 # B R AT
MR ARNFERE -

EE

(a)

R AT

B 5 N H M FEWGRIE B4R E 0k R AR
B 5 4975 13,948,000 (=& — —
£ 4975 H52,750,0007T ) 2 & 5 FEU
MIE AN RERRREZABR R
BT :

The Group
REE

2012 2011
e %
HK$°000 HK$ 000
EBEFTT BT T
0 to 30 days T E30H 5,338 1,394
31 to 60 days 31260H 7,671 1,066
61 to 120 days 612120H 3,786 1,599
Over 120 days 1208 A £ 345 810
17,140 4,869

The average credit period on sale of goods is normally settled within
60 days from the invoice date.

Annual Report 2012
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that the recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written

off against trade receivables directly.

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year,
including both specific and collective loss components, are as follows:

21. EZ R H W FR (&)

Hrat: (&)

(b)

B RERERESR

B 5 R IE 2R EE BT R
BRAR EMAEERRKEZERE
Z A B ERRR AR AN - RAZIE R T
BB E RS B EE 5 R WK IE
85

RAFEE RERE2E2E (BHEE
PIRARBERD)NT

The Group
rEME

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B F T
At beginning of year REF ] 2,750 2,695
Provision for impairment losses BB EE 2 B 1,198 55
At end of year RER 3,948 2,750

As at 31 March 2012, trade receivables of the Group of approximately
HK$3,948,000 (2011: approximately HK$2,750,000) were individually
determined to be impaired and full provision had been made. These
individually impaired receivables were outstanding for over 150 days
as at the end of the reporting period and related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and management assessed that only a
portion of the receivables could be recovered.

—E-—FFR

N-_E-——F=—fF=+—H K&
& R4 E B 853,948,000 (=&
—— 4 #)582,750,000C) 2 B 5
FEWFIBE ERIEE ARENREE
2 EEE - Z S EBR E R EIE
RS ERE @ EAR 1508 A £ -
WENRGERE 2T HR ME
BREME BF 3D EIRERIE AT I
@ °
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

110

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

21. EZ R EHMEWRFIR (&)

Hrat: (48)

Trade receivables that are not impaired ()0 ¥YEEEZEZEWFTE
The aging analysis of trade debtors that are neither individually nor I AR R HERAWRAETRELE
collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: SEBIE R Z R AT T
The Group
REE
2012 2011
—B-—fF —F——F
HK$000 HK$°000
BT B F T
Neither past due nor impaired R H B R E 7,942 895
Less than 1 month past due wH DR —E A 4,869 1,019
1 to 3 months past due wmE—=={AA 3,981 2,015
More than 3 months =EANUE 348 940
9,198 3,974
17,140 4,869
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a iR B HR TR R RE 2 e U S IA L 4
number of diversified customers for whom there has been no recent Lt EFPER  BEHERIER
history of default. 4% o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number B HEE R RE 2 FE U R IB 1% 4 B
of independent customers that have a good track record with the REBRE R ITABERE Y BIRE
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no BB -mBEeALSH AR EEEE
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as WEEAXEE  BZEEHNWEAE
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the AeHkE  hEREEREHALE
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not B8 45 B VE B R B B o AN B
hold any collateral over these balances. i BT IR o
Amount due from a related company (d) FEWEEARRE

The balance with a related company, of which the beneficial owner
of a corporate substantial shareholder is the director of the related
company, is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment.

Annual Report 2012
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2. BeRBEEEER

The Group
REE
2012 2011
—E—-—fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETF T BB F T
Cash at bank IRITEFR® 3,623 1,484
Cash on hand FERe 1 6
3,624 1,490
23. TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER . ESEMSRE EFERAR
PAYABLES H it B R1E
The Group The Company
bi-E | ¥ /NG

2012 2011 2012 2011
—F--fF %% Z%B-=fF ZTF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BEFT JBMTT BETT BT T
Trade payables (Note (a)) BHEMNRIE (HitE) 7,306 7,222 - -
Accruals BB 8,781 7,955 5,024 3,633
Other payables Hith 3R 6,899 5,306 1311 2,365
22,986 20,483 6,335 5,998
—E-——FFR KBREEEEARAA 111
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23.

112

TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
PAYABLES (Continued)

The following is the aging analysis of trade payables based

2. EZEAFIE EBAEAK
Hib B ()

RBERR EHRNTIRLESR

on invoice date at the end of the reporting period: HEAZ BREC AT T -
2012 2011
—E—-—fF —E——fF
HK$000 HK$°000
B F T BB F T
0 to 30 days EF30H 1,478 1,526
31 to 90 days 31£290H 316 279
Over 90 days 90H M k 5,512 5,417
Trade payables B 5 ENRIA 7,306 7,222

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and are
normally settled within 30 days from the invoice date.

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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24. DEFERRED TAX

(a) Deferred tax liabilities

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the statements of financial position and the movements

24 REBIE

() EEHRERE

EEMBRRARAER ZE
FER IR B B 2 KB K AR

during the current and prior years are as follows: FERBAFEZEHUOT :
The Group AEME
Convertible
note
CIE: Y, &%
HK$°000
BT T
At 1 April 2010 R-_E-ZTFMWA—H 9

Credit to consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year
(Note 11(a))

At 31 March 2011 and
31 March 2012

ANEEEREGZAEEMBER
(Htat11@a))

Al
Il
[
—+ +
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24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

114

(a)

(b)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

24 RFEH H (8])
(a) EEBHEE (F)

The Company KAF
Convertible
note
AR EE
HK$°000
BT T
At 1 April 2010 RZE-—ZFMA—H 9
Credit to statement of rFEFERTrEKER
comprehensive income for the year 9)
At 31 March 2011 and RZE——F=A=T—HBK
31 March 2012 —ET——F=RA=+—H -

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At the end of reporting period, the Group and the
Company had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$764,510,000 (2011: approximately
HK$735,289,000) and HK$47,462,000 (2011:
approximately HK$27,351,000), respectively. Included
in the balances are unused tax losses of the Group and
the Company which have been approved by the IRD
amounted to approximately HK$54,834,000 (2011:
approximately HK$54,605,000) and HK$13,485,000
(2011: approximately HK$13,485,000), respectively. The
unused tax losses approved by the IRD are available for
offset against future profits that may be carried forward
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. There is no other significant
unrecognised deferred tax as at 31 March 2012 and
2011.

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012

(b) RERIELEB REE

RBEBER AEEBRARD
ABARBABBEEES L
A 764,510,000 (=&
— — 4 : 4775 #735,289,000
7T ) N 7B #47,462,0007T ( —
T ——F : 4)8%27,351,000
TL) o HEBRPEEASEER
RKRAREERB BRI EZ
RE)AB B EE D B H B
#54,834,00070 (=& — —
& 4978 #54,605,00000 ) &
13,485,0007C (—ZF——4%:
#9755 #13,485,0007T ) ° EF
R E 2 KRB A EE
AR AR SE AR A5 ) - 32 AT DA
mIR HA b 4595 o (A RBETEORIR
R A EE  BRBLZFRTE
EEREREENRIBEEE N
T-—_FR_TE—F=A
=+—H SEEMEARE
RIEERIE o
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25. BORROWINGS 25. B &
(a) Borrowings (a) B E
The Group The Company
PN ] ¥ NG
2012 2011 2012 2011

—®-CF “FF Z®-ZF —FF
HKS'000 ~ HKS000 ~ HKS'000 HK$'000
BETR  BETT  EBETR BRI

Loans from a substantial ~ RE—ZTEBREZ
shareholder, unsecured EIRBER (H20)

(Note (1)) 328,019 314,226 295,226 282,507
Loans from related REBERRZERA

companies, unsecured BR (M)

(Note (ii)) 12,427 3,582 4,327 3,582
Loans from third parties, REFE=F 2 BEAER

unsecured (Note (iii)) (Wrzt (i) 132,821 110,608 98,127 88,561

473,267 428,416 397,680 374,650

Analysed as: LRiv=E
Current mE 381,951 87,454 352,607 78,410
Non-current ERE 91,316 340,962 45,073 296,240

473,267 428,416 397,680 374,650

—ET-—EEFHR KBEXREEARAF 115
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25. BORROWINGS (Continued)

116

(a) Borrowings (Continued)

Notes:

@)

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

The amount represents loans granted by Billion Wealth. As at the
end of the reporting period, the amount comprises three loan
facilities, with their principal amounts in aggregate of approximately
HK$139,545,000 (2011: approximately HK$136,802,000), granted
by Billion Wealth to the Group and the Company. They comprises:
(1) a facility of HK$60,000,000 (2011: HK$60,000,000) fully utilised
by the Group and the Company in prior years. The loan is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. In the prior year, the loan
was repayable on the expiry of 36 months from the date on which
the loan was made or any other later date as may be mutually agreed
in writing by the Company and Billion Wealth; (2) another facility
of HK$50,000,000 (2011: approximately HK$50,000,000) was fully
utilised by the Group and the Company in prior years. The loan is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. In the prior year,
the loan was repayable on the date falling upon the resumption of
trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange; and
(3) a facility of HK$50,000,000 (2011: HK$50,000,000) which the
Group and the Company has utilised approximately HK$29,545,000
(2011: approximately HK$26,802,000) as at the end of the reporting
period. The loan is unsecured and interest-free. During the year,
advances of approximately HK$2,743,000 (2011: approximately
HK$26,802,000) were made by Billion Wealth which were repayable
on the expiry of 24 months from the date on which the loans were
made. The remaining balance was repayable on demand. An amount
of approximately HK$260,000 was credited to equity of the Group
and the Company as deemed shareholder’s contribution.

Annual Report 2012

25. 168 (&)

(a) & (%8)

ot

@)

5% X TE $EBillion Wealthi% ¥ 2 &
Foo TR & HI R - 52 208 2 #EBillion
Wealth#® F AL B R ARRZ =8 AR
SR A HE 475 %139,545,000T (=
T ——1F : #)75%136,802,00070) 2
EXRE - ZFUERE: () 84E&
ERARNRERBEFERZEHA
2 Bh & % #60,000,000T (=T ——
£ 5 #60,000,0007T) * X E R A
EI - BB RAREREE -NB
AFE ZERERELERERAR
#3618 A i BF ok f AN A 7] E2Billion
Wealthd] £ #8 B Z H 1% & 2 T H
fhE R BEER Q5 —EAEER
ARRERBEFEEHESHAZR
B #50,000,0007T ( —F ——4:
#97% #50,000,0007T) * X E X A&
BB REEREREE - RNBE
FE - ZERARAR ARG R
REIMMEEEEHEE RQ)—F
78 #50,000,0007C (=& — —F %
#50,000,0007T) Z R & - A AR RS
AARAEBMEARABCHANEE
29,545,0007C (Z T ——F: f9B K
26,802,0007T ) ° #% B 3k A E I &
% B o INANEE - Billion WealthE 12
498 #2,743,000T (T ——F:
#4978 1 26,802,00070) B3 WAR
BREERE BRA24EA B REE
BB THEAREREERE - —2H
75 %260,0007T 2 FRIBE R AR H
Bt ALREBERANGZ B -
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25. BORROWINGS (Continued) 25. B8 (&)

(a) & (%8)

(a) Borrowings (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) et (48)

On 12 May 2010, Billion Wealth extended the repayment terms of its
non-interest bearing facility of HK$60,000,000 granted to the Group
and the Company. Unamortised imputed interest expense on the loan
as on that date of approximately HK$2,876,000 was released and
debited to the equity of the Group and the Company. In addition, an
amount of approximately HK$10,726,000 was credited to equity of
the Group and the Company as deemed shareholders’ contributions.
Prior to Billion Wealth was a shareholder of the Company, an imputed
interest income of HK$6,000,000 was credited to the profit or loss in
connection to its provisions of interest-free loans to the Group and
the Company.

An imputed interest expense of approximately HK$3,837,000 (2011:
approximately HK$9,086,000) was debited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of the Group and the Company.
Imputed interest expenses on the facilities are calculated using the
effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 5%

per annum.

Included in the borrowings were also a loan balance assigned
from a former shareholder of the Company in aggregate
amount of approximately HK$128,475,000 (2011: approximately
HK$123,003,000). As at the end of reporting period, the assigned
loan is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate plus 1%
per annum and is repayable on demand (2011: not repayable within
one year).

The amount also comprises loans assigned from another former
shareholder and its subsidiary of approximately HK$61,186,000
and HK$28,393,000 (2011: approximately HK$59,185,000 and
HK$27,466,000) for the Group and the Company, respectively. The
loans are unsecured, bearing interest in Hong Kong prime rate per
annum and are repayable on the expiry of 30 calendar months after
the year end of the first profitable financial year of the Company
since 24 January 2003 but no later than the twentieth anniversary of
24 January 2003.

R-_ZE—ZFF A A+ =8 "Billion
WealthfE R A% T ARNEE kA A A
2 78 160,000,000 T BB E 2 EBK
Hl-ZEFNE B ZAHRHEEEN S
F s 4978 152,876,000c 2 H I B
RNEE RARR A Z AR ok
—E#)7%10,726,0007T 2 FRIBD AR
ARRLEFTARNEERARAZ
fi% 7%  Billion Wealthfk & 72 2~ 7 IR &R
- BEERAEERAQBRER
B E R 2 A%6,000,0007T #HEZ F 5
X Tyat AdBzEm o

EEANEERARRZ A 2ERE
KP4 75%3,837,000C (=&
—— 4 #778%59,086,0007T ) Z HEE
FEFL -BMEZHENSAIAE
BB EIRERF R RSB E o

ZIEEFENOEEEEANR—F
AR 2 B SR BB ABE
128,475,0007T ( ZZ——4F : 475
123,003,00070) * R EHIAR % B
HEEENAEER RELRERF
FIEMIET B - WEREREE (=
E——FHER-FAEE) -

ZATENRIEAEE RARF D R
FEHS—BARELRENBARZ
B %% AB%61,186,000L &
75 #:28,303,0000C (Z T ——F : &)
7 159,185,0007T ) & 127,466,000
L) REERAEERF BERET
BEEFMNERGFE  WERA-TT=
F-—AZTMARAR A EEEF
PHFEFLEBR0EEAER
BEE HAAENR 2T =F—A
ZHIMHRE20EFER -
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25. BORROWINGS (Continued)

118

(a) Borrowings (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

As at the end of the reporting period, an amount of approximately
HK$4,327,000 (2011: approximately HK$3,582,000) was granted to
the Group and the Company by a company under common control
of the beneficial holder of Billion Wealth. The amount is unsecured,
bearing interest at 36% (2011:
on demand.

12%) per annum and are repayable

As further detailed in Note 2(b)(i), a loan facility of HK$100,000,000
was granted by the Lender to the Group of which an amount of
HK$8,100,000 (2011: Nil) was utilised during the year. The amount is

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at the end of the reporting period, the balance comprised
loans granted by third parties of approximately HK$36,816,000
and HK$15,572,000 (2011: approximately HK$24,616,000 and
HK$15,572,000) to the Group and the Company, respectively. These
loans are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The amount also comprised loans granted by third parties of
approximately HK$27,647,000 and HK$14,197,000 (2011:
approximately HK$26,736,000 and HK$13,733,000) to the Group
and the Company, respectively. The loans are unsecured, bearing
interest at Hong Kong prime rate per annum and are repayable on the
expiry of 30 calendar months after the year end of the first profitable
financial year of the Company since 24 January 2003 but no later
than the twentieth anniversary of 24 January 2003.

Annual Report 2012

25. 168 (&)

(a)

ot

(i)

(iii)

B8 (&)
()

)\Ef\‘tﬁiﬁﬂﬂi » —Z fiBillion WealthE &
BEAKRERHZ ARBRTFEAEER
VAN ﬂ—%,ﬁﬁ;a #4,327,0007C (=%
——4F : #)78%3,582,0007T ) Z 7K IHA
FRBEREER EFFEIE (=

T——F:NE)FE WARKREXE
}%o
AP EE2(0)(DET FF A IR A T F

$;‘%f$,%m¥1oo,ooo,000x2§
FELE - HAR#E8,100,000T (= Z
——F B BERENEA - Zg‘étx
BEER RERAREREE

RBEHA ZERBEREZA
ARANBRFAEBEAABNEE
36,816,000 & 7% #15,572,0007C
(ZZ——F : 4975%24,616,0007T
K 7 #15,572,00000) 2 Bk % &
BRAEEE RERIREREE-

ZHENREE=ADRETAER
RN B #527,647,0007T RS 1
14,197,0007T ( =T ——%F : LB
26,736,0007T K 7% #13,733,0007T )
CER -ZEERAERE RET
BEEFHNERFEREH-_ZZT=
F-—AZTMARARR A EEEF
FREEFLBREA0EEARER
WRIBR - TE=F—F
Z+MHER20EFER -
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25. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a)

Borrowings (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(b)

(Continued)

The remaining amount of approximately HK$68,358,000 (2011:
approximately HK$59,256,000) due by the Group and the Company
are unsecured and bearing interest at the rates ranging from 5.0%
to 36.0% per annum (2011:
annum). These balances are repayable within one year from the end

ranging from 0.5% to 24.0% per

of reporting period or on demand.

As at the end of reporting period, certain of the above balances were
in dispute with the respective parties, details of which are set out in
Note 25(b) below.

Borrowings under dispute

Included in the borrowings as at the end of the
reporting period were certain loan balances under
dispute by the Group with various parties. The Directors
are of the opinion that several transactions with the
counterparties did not have formal agreements nor
were there evidence of such arrangements. Further,
in the opinion of the Directors, even when there were
formal agreements, the services to be provided by those
counterparties under those arrangements were never
provided. The Company has instructed a legal advisor to
handle the legal aspect of the dispute.

25. 168 (&)

(a)

Bt

(iii)

(b)

——FER

B8 (&)

()

()

AR R AR A 2 R IR

775 %68,358,0007T (— & —— 4 :
497 #59,256,0007T ) © A K 1 -
REFNRS0EE36.0EB(-F——
FFFROSEE240E)HE %

EERBRREHRRBT—FANA
REREE-

REER  RRABG s T4
HBEMIELNS MOFBENRT
XHtEE25(b) ©

EXMmnzfEE

REmERRZIEEREAS
EEZ A ELMUBCETE
RER - BEERE HRFHY
FETZEZEIHWEETL
FBBENEFERERE
oM EER A BIE
FIBERHE ZERIEHA
NAREREZEHERMTZ
AR o AN A RIE BN AR
BEBBMm 2 EEEH .
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25. BORROWINGS (Continued)

120

(b) Borrowings under dispute (Continued)

The Group and the Company accrued interest expenses
of approximately HK$277,000 and HK$219,000
(2011: approximately HK$277,000 and HK$219,000)
and included in the finance costs of the Group and
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2012,
respectively. Despite the borrowings from above
being under dispute as at the reporting date, interest
expenses were charged based on the amounts due and
the applicable interest rates.

An analysis of the borrowings under dispute is as

follows:

5. 88 (&)

(b) EXMB2EE

BHE—_E——F€=A=+—
HEFE AEBEERAKAAQA
ZEGFNERZ L BB
277,0007T & 7% #219,000
T(ZE——F: 08K
277,0007T & 7% #219,000
L) WE R RIEFAREE R
RRAB 2GR - &E Ll
BERERE BN FELS -
MEE 1R B HA BRI AR R
HERFMER -

ELEMMZBE 2T

The Group The Company
N | NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—%--fF —%-F ZB--F —FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT JEEF T BYFT BETT
Loans from third parties, REFE=F 2
unsecured BERERN 23,644 23,367 14,129 13,910
Analysed as: PR
Current mE 15,349 15,349 7,425 7,425
Non-current ERE 8,295 8,018 6,704 6,485
23,644 23,367 14,129 13,910

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

Annual Report 2012
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26. CONVERTIBLE NOTE 26. TR EE

Pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 3 February
2005, a convertible note (“the Note”) with principal amount
of HK$50,000,000 was issued to the then substantial
shareholder of the Company, Strategic Media on 30 April
2005 which expired on 29 April 2007 which subsequently
extended to 30 April 2010 in the prior year. Holder of the
Note had the right at any time to convert all or part of the
Note into shares of the Company at the conversion price
of HK$0.05 per share, subject to adjustment. The coupon
interest rate on the Note was 1.5% per annum on the
principal amount. Interest was payable by the Company
once every six months in arrears so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of charge for each accounting period.

In the prior years, all of the rights, title and benefits in
the Note issued by the Company were assigned to Billion
Wealth.

In the prior year, the Note with principal amount of
HK$48,000,000 had been converted into 960,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company. The remaining principal
amount of the Note of HK$1,000,000 had also been
converted into 20,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
and the remaining balance of HK$1,000,000 was reclassified
to other payable upon its maturity on 30 April 2010.

BER-_ZEETRF-_A=HF
UZRBEHE A ER/BE
50,000,0007T Z Al 2 fx R 3 ([
BI)DR-_ZEZTRAFMA=+H
BITARRERZEFERR
Strategic Media* WA — T T+ F
MAZ+ARER HERER
A —FERE-_T—ZTFNA
=1+ H -RERFEABEERINE
AR AR 7 %60.05 T 2 AR (B (7] T
AR B E D RIRER AR
NRIRH - BB 2 ZEHNERIRAR
CRUNFMEI1SEFE - FEHR
RARERMEA =R ERE
BEG RN EERTEZES
BH-

RBAEFE X227 E [Billion
WealthE#BZHEBRTEE 2 TA
R FTERE NS o

RE—FE FXeBERABE
48,000,000t 2 EHEE#EIR A
960,000,0000% A& A &) E @Ak - =
B2 82 T A& %875 %1,000,0007T
JNE & 4 520,000,0000% A A A
38 I - B 5 1,000,0007T 2 B4
HAINAB A T —FF A
—t+HEHNSEEEMENRIE
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26. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (Continued) 26. TR RE (&)
The movements of the liability component of the Note for ZERAEMBINRBE_T——F
the year ended 31 March 2011 were as follows: “A=1T—RLFEZEHNT :

The Group and

Company

AEBRARADF

2011

—E——F

HK$°000

VBT T

Liability component at beginning of year RENZBEHD 1,914

Interest charge (Note 9) MEFXZ (#iE9) 86

Conversion into ordinary shares of LR Al VNN R 35

the Company (1,000)

Reclassify to other payable upon maturity FEAR BT D R R H A R IR (1,000)
Liability component at end of year, RERZBEHD  REHBH

current portion -

Interest expense on the Note was calculated using the —EENFOHA-—HBE=FT——

effective interest method by applying the effective interest FOA=THAGEHS 2EEF

rate of 34.8% per annum from 1 April 2008 to 30 April BERAXHEAEBRNEERERF

2011 for the liability component. &34 8E:HHE -
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RO EE £} RinEE £
‘000 HKS$000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR BETT TR BEFT
Authorised: JEJE
Ordinary shares of BREEE®.05T2
HK$0.05 each HEER
At beginning of the year REA) 100,000,000 5,000,000 4,000,000 200,000
Increase during the year ERE I (M)
(Note (1)) - - 96,000,000 4,800,000
At end of the year REXR 100,000,000 5,000,000 100,000,000 5,000,000
Convertible preference shares &R EEE%0.057 2
of HK$0.05 each TRRELR
At beginning of the year el 50,000,000 2,500,000 - -
Increase during the year EREM (M)
(Note (7)) - - 50,000,000 2,500,000
At end of the year REXR 50,000,000 2,500,000 50,000,000 2,500,000
Ordinary shares, issued and BETRMEZLER:
fully paid:
At beginning of the year REA] 1,971,686 98,584 1,951,686 97,584
Conversion of the Note BRARE (W)
(Note (iii)) - - 20,000 1,000
At end of the year RER 1,971,686 98,584 1,971,686 98,584
“ECFEWR KmEESEEERAF 123



Notes to the Financial Statements 1 e eor enved 31 march 2012

B HRIEE oo -

FZA=1—HILFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(0}

(ii)

(iii)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at
the annual general meeting of the Company on 30 June 2010, the
authorised share capital of the Company had been increased from
HK$200,000,000 divided into 4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each (“Ordinary Shares”) to HK$5,000,000,000 divided into
100,000,000,000 Ordinary Shares and 50,000,000,000 convertible
preference shares of HK$0.05 each (“Convertible Preference
Shares”) by the creation of 96,000,000,000 Ordinary Shares and

50,000,000,000 Convertible Preference Shares.

The holders of the ordinary shares are entitled to recover dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Company'’s residual assets.

28. RESERVES

124

(a) The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012

On 29 April 2010, 20,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company were

issued as a result of partial conversion of the Note by a note-holder.

27. B (#8)

Hiat -

(i)

(iii)

RERER=_E—ZFA=THEE
IZARFRRAFAG L@BRrYE
SRS Z 5 B 18 £296,000,000,000
BERBE0STTzEBR([ER
% ]) %50,000,000,0000% & i% 74 1
0.057T AT #2 AR 8 45 AR ([ AT R AR (B 5
1) ARRZEERAD HAE
200,000,000t (% A4,000,000,000
f% & imA% ) - 3% 2= % %5,000,000,000
7t (% A100,000,000,0000% & &
A% }50,000,000,0000% AT #2 i% & %
%) e

£ Hxhﬁ/\ﬁ%H&HXTH Bk 2
B WERRARFEGH L SRE
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28. RESERVES (Continued) 28. fiEfE (&)

(b) The Company (b) AT

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARERAEE
Convertible
Share  noteequity Shareholders’  Distributable  Accumulated
premium reserve  contributions reserve losses Total
TRREE
REE BRfE RR4E THHKEE 2EFE @t
Notes HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
s FETT FETT BETT EETT FETT BT
At 1 April 2010 RZZ-ZEmA-A 140,573 al 49,087 231,340 (843,250) (421,509)
Capital portion of advance FERRETM
from substantial shareholder ERHH 253)l) - - 10,726 - - 10,726
Release of shareholders' A-2RE 2 E7ER
contribution resulted BEMBLRRAE
from change in terms of
shareholders' loan 258)0) - - (2,876) - - (2,876)
Total comprehensive income ER2ENALE
for the year - - - - (68,577) (68,577)
Conversion of convertible note BRTARTE 2% 370 (370) - = - -
Expiry of convertible note RREESH 2% - 3n) - = 37 -
At 31 March 2011 and RZE——F
at 1 April 2011 ZA=t-BEk
RZE-——5MA-A 140,943 - 56,937 231,340 (911,456) (482,236)
Capital portion of advance TERRETM
from substantial shareholder ERHH 253)l) - - 260 - - 260
Total comprehensive income ER2ENALE
for the year - - - - (23,644) (23,644)
At 31 March 2012 RZZ-ZF
=R=t+-H 140,943 - 57,197 231,340 (935,100) (505,620)
T FEWR KmEESEERAF 125
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28. RESERVES (Continued)

126

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(M)

(ii)

(iii)

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Acts of the Cayman
Islands.

Under the Companies Acts of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Convertible note equity reserve

The convertible note equity reserve of the Group
represents the value of the unexercised equity
component of convertible notes issued by the
Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible note in
Note 4.

Shareholders’ contribution

Shareholders’ contribution represents the waiver of
loans from equity holders during the year ended 31
March 2003 and non-interest bearing loan facilities
granted by shareholders to the Group and the
Company.
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28. RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 4.

(v) Distributable reserve

Distributable reserve represents the surplus arising
from cancellation of paid-up capital upon the
reduction of the nominal value of every issued
share from HK$0.1000 to HK$0.0025 during the
year ended 31 March 2003.

(d) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, and to support the Group's sustainable
growth.

The Group has deficiency in capital of approximately
HK$407,036,000 at 31 March 2012 (2011:
approximately HK$383,652,000). As set forth in Note 2,
the Directors have adopted several measures including
obtain facilities from new investor, cost control, start up
new markets and business line, negotiating with new
investors and exploring restructuring plan in order to
maintain the Group as a going concern.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.
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29. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29. 8B & RERM

30.

128

CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transaction FEFRERS
The convertible note with principal amount of approximately NeEE4) A 75%1,000,0007T 2 7]
HK$1,000,000 had not been converted up to its expiry date BREBIAEE T -TFN
on 30 April 2010 and was transferred to other payables as A=+THZIHAE#E®R W&
further detailed in Note 26. BEHEAMENTIE - 55 R 2EM
726 °
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. EAREIE
Capital commitments outstanding at the end of reporting REHRL BRI REAED
period not provided for in the financial statements were as B2 RBITEAREENT
follows:
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—B-CfF —F——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Leasehold improvement of office: MAZEHEMERE:
— contracted but not provided for —BERTAE R B 530 -

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

Annual Report 2012



NOteS tO the FinanCiaI Statements For the year ended 31 March 2012

,\jﬁiﬁiﬁﬁ-? B2 TFEZ A=+ —HIEFE

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises, motor
vehicles and machineries under operating lease
arrangements.

At 31 March 2012 and 2011, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

31.

REeBERE

AEBERBEEEHELRHHEES
THAEWE  TE NS

RNZE——FR-_T——F=H
:+—E’EF$TW%ZW%E

ERNZRARRKEBERIBLE
N

2012 2011

—F-=F —F—F

HK$'000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

Within one year —F N 2,157 6,572

In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFNF

(BREEMF) 4,409 2,801

6,566 9,373

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the REMEFEERAEEREET

Group for certain of its office premises, machinery and WNEYE M RTBREN 2

motor vehicles. Leases are negotiated for an average term of o REREEZHNFRYIAR
three years and rentals are fixed throughout the respective =F FEENPANESEE -

lease periods.
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32.

130

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

On 30 June 2010, the shareholders approved the adoption
of a new share option scheme and termination of the then
existing share option scheme, which was adopted on 15
January 2002 (the “Old Scheme”). No share option under
the Old Scheme was outstanding at 31 March 2011.

On 30 June 2010, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Option Scheme”) under which the board
of directors of the Company may at its discretion offer
to any director, employee, consultant, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group
or the Company in which the Group holds an interest
or a subsidiary of such company (the “Eligible Persons”)
of the options to subscribe for shares in the Company
in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme and
Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules. The principal purposes
of the Option Scheme are to motivate, attract and retain or
otherwise maintain ongoing relationship with the Eligible
Persons to the long term growth of the Group. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Option Scheme and any
other outstanding share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of the approval of the
Option Scheme by the shareholders and such limit might be
refreshed by the shareholders of the Company in general
meetings. The Option Scheme commenced on 30 June
2010 and will end on the day immediately prior to the
tenth anniversary of 30 June 2010. The share options vested
immediately at the time when granted.

The Company did not grant any option under the Option
Scheme during the year.

No share option was outstanding at 31 March 2012 and
2011.

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited  Annual Report 2012
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33.

34.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions described
above.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$915,000
(2011: approximately HK$1,197,000) (Note 10) represents
contribution payable to these schemes by the Group in
respect of the current accounting period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, the Group
have the following material litigations:

There were several cases brought forward from prior years
related to defamation and infringement of copyright that
remained unresolved. All of them were brought against
Sing Pao Newspaper Company Limited (“SPNCL"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Court judgments
have not been stated and the amounts claimed were in
aggregate approximately HK$517,000 (2011: approximately
HK$517,000). In the Directors’ opinion, the liabilities are
unlikely to crystallise and no provision has therefore been
made in respect of these claims as at 31 March 2012 and
2011.

—E-—FFR
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

35.

132

In July 2007, a licensee of SPNCL acts as the defendant
in a legal claim in relation to an action for copyright
infringement, issued a third party notice to SPNCL. The
defendant claimed against SPNCL for indemnity against the
plaintiff's claims and the cost of the action or contribution
in respect of the plaintiff's claims. A defence was filed by
the Group in March 2008 denying all allegations against
the Group. Judgments have not been stated up to the date
of this report. In the Directors’ opinion, the liabilities are
unlikely to crystallise and no provision had therefore been

made in respect of the claim.

34. RARKE (&)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35.BEALRS
Name of related parties Relationship

BEALTEB &

Billion Wealth A substantial shareholder of the Company
Billion Wealth RAFIZEFERR

Birmingham International Holdings Limited
("Birmingham™)

HEASRRERAR L F ([1AAE])

Universal Group Holdings Limited
("Universal Group”)

Universal Group Holdings Limited
([Universal Group )

SPLux Company Limited (“SPLux")

SPLux Company Limited ([SPLux |)

Sing Pao Media Enterprises Limited

Mr. Yeung Ka Sing, Carson (“Mr. Yeung”), who has
deemed substantial interest in the Company, is also
a director of Birmingham

BERBEE ([HBEE]) WRBEBERNRARENES
TRAAHZES

Mr. Yeung is also a director and a shareholder of

Universal Group

15 % 4 1 A Universal GroupZ & 5 MR R

Mr. Ma Shui Cheong is a director and
a shareholder of SPLux

EESLE ASPLUXC EE RIRE
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 5. BEALRS (&)

(a) In addition to the transactions disclosed elsewhere in (a) BRI EHREREMET D HE

the financial statements, the Group also entered into
the following related party transactions during the year.

ZRZIN NEB IR EFRR]
MATHEALR S

The Group
rEEH
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$°000
B F T VBT T
Interest expenses on loan from 2K B Billion Wealth,z
Billion Wealth* BN B> 7,474 6,612
Interest expenses on loan from REEABZIERZ
Birmingham* MEFZ* 810 319
Effective interest expense on 2K B Billion Wealth,z
loan from Billion Wealth* ERZEBRAE
Fr S * 3,837 9,086
Consultancy fee to Mr. Tian XN TFTHBRELREZ
BingXin AR & 52 -
Advertising income from REHERAHZ
Birmingham* B & WA (828) (6,032)
Advertising income from R B Universal Group
Universal Group* 2 BEWAF - (956)
Advertising income from SPLux*  2& B SPLux.Z
R N (29) (246)

* Connected transaction

* BEXS
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35.

36.

134

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Compensation for key management personnel,

including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and
senior executives, is as follows:

5. BEALXRS (&)

(b) TEEBAEME

ZEBABMEBERN
FAAREERBRITHA
87 FORHSIMT

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HKS$000 HK$000
BT T BT T

Salaries and other short-term HehHMEHES
employee benefits Zi=pl 1,598 3,652
Compensation for loss of office BB e 116 -
Pension scheme contribution RIREFTEIHR 16 47
1,730 3,699

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and currency risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk

(i)

(ii)

In respect of trade and other receivables, in order
to minimise risk, the management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial position and
condition are performed on each and every major
customer periodically. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of its financial assets.
Debts are usually due within 30 to 60 days from
the date of billing.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group's
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. At 31
March 2012, the Group had certain concentration
of credit risk as approximately 63% (2011: 12%)
and 7% (2011: 13%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from a major customer and a
business partner, respectively.

36. tREMREEEZERBE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

136

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii) The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in Note 21.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to board approval. The Group’s policy is
to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
potential investor to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term. The Group relies on
borrowings as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31
March 2012, the Group had undrawn loan facilities
available from a corporate entity as further detailed in
Note 2 of the financial statements of HK$91,900,000
(2011: HK$100,000,000). The Directors plan to seek
further financial support, when necessary, from this
corporate entity to provide adequate funds for the
Group to meet its liabilities as when they fall due in the
future.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following liquidity table set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s and the Company's financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group and the Company is required to pay:

(%)

(b)

REBESER (F)

36. tREMREEEZERBE

TRENAEERARAZ
MR ERRE R FR
BHEHBR -
BINRESOARREARE R
E (BRERAONEX (B
T8 AR E IR ZRITH
R)FEZMBNAFT) RALE
B RARBANKZEZRH

“ZEVBE

HARmESE:
The Group rE
2012 201
- %
More than  More than Total More than ~ More than Total
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but contractual Within -~ Tyearbut 2 years but contractual
Tyearor  lessthan  lessthan  More than undiscounted Carrying 1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount o demand 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
ELES 3 AHRER
-Fpg  BB-5E REREE REhE —FRy  RE-FE  BERER Reig
REX  OHEE  HWEF  BBIE EL REfE BEX JHRRE JRRE #8RE #R BEE
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSUOO  HKSUOO  HKSOOD  HKSUOO  HKSUOO  HKSUOD  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSUOOD
AETL  BEFT BEFT BETL BEFT BRIR BETr AEFr o EEFr BT BETT 0 AR
Borrowings [&& 38,912 2,183 - 120,308 506,023 473,267 90,331 265,291 - 121384 477,006 428416
Trade and other payables B 5 RAHERFE 22,986 - - - 2,986 2,986 20483 - - - 20483 20,483
405,958 2,183 = 120,308 529,009 496,253 110814 265,291 - 121,384 497,489 443,899
The Company A
2012 2011
8-CF 2
More than  More than Total More than ~ More than Total
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but contractual Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but contractual
fyearor  lessthan  lessthan  More than undiscounted Carrying 1 year or fess than lessthan ~ More than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount o demand 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
ELEd 3 AHRER
-FRy RE-5E EEREE REHE —Fhy RE-FE  BERFE
REX  OWREE  OWEF  #AIE 8% HREE REX  JRRE  ORDF  BAIE 2% REE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
BETL  ERFr EEFL BETn BRTL ERFn AETn BETr EEFr BT BRI AETT
Borrowings ®E 353,628 2,143 = 57,653 414,024 397,680 81,287 265,291 - 57,657 404,235 374,650
Due to subsidiaries ERHBARE 3,01 - - - 3,021 3,001 3,004 - - - 3,004 3,004
Other payables AR 6,335 - - - 6,335 6,335 5,998 - - - 5,99 5,99
362,984 2,183 - 57,653 423,380 407,036 90,289 265,291 - 57,657 41331 383,652
—E-FFHR KBREESEEERIF 137
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

138

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest risk arises primarily from its
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of market interest rate arising from the
Group’s borrowings and bank deposits.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as its bank
deposits are all interest-bearing. All bank deposits are
short-term deposits with maturities of less than or equal
to three months. Management does not anticipate any
significant impact resulting from the change in interest
rates because the Group’s bank balances are carried at
low interest rates and the interest income thereon is not
significant.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of reporting

36. tREMREEEZERBE

(%)
(o) MREMR (&)
(i) FIZ=HER

TRFANAREERRE
HIRBE Z RGN

period:
The Group
N |
2012 2011
—g-C& —E——F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
RS BRME
% HKS$000 % HK$'000
BT BT T
Fixed rate borrowings: EEREEE:
Borrowings R 5-36 72,685 0.5-24 62,838
Variable rate borrowings: #BFIREE:
Borrowings G0 5-6 217,308 5-6 208,924
Total borrowings BEBE 289,993 271,762
Fixed rate borrowings BEMEEE
as a percentage of HBEEFEL
total net borrowings Bo 25% 23%
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. cRlEREEBEERBE

AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FIEmEBS (4F)
(i) Interest rate profile (Continued) (i) FIEER (&)
The Company
NN
2012 2011
ZE-ZF —E——F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
BBRA=® BRAI%
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Fixed rate borrowings: EERREE:
Borrowings R 5-36 72,685 0.5-24 62,838
Variable rate borrowings: #BFIREE
Borrowings E3-1 5-6 171,065 5-6 164,202
Total borrowings BEBE 243,750 227,040
Fixed rate borrowings BEMEEE
as a percentage of HREEFE L
total net borrowings Bo 30% 28%
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

36. tREMREEEZERBE

(%)

(o) MREMR (&)

(i) BREDH

At 31 March 2012, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s
loss after tax and accumulated losses by
approximately HK$1,087,000 (2011: approximately
HK$1,045,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
non-derivative financial liabilities in existence
at that date. The 50 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.

(d) Currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the
foreign exchange exposure. The Group’s transactional
currency is Hong Kong dollar as substantially all
the turnover is in Hong Kong dollar. The Group’s
transactional foreign exchange exposure was

insignificant.
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1,045,0007T ) °
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£ WASH R EE AR
BRI ZIFOT B 75
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets and financial

142

liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively; and

the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates
from observable current market transactions as
input.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2012 and 2011.
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37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37.

LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities as recognised at 31
March 2012 and 2011 may be categorised as follows:

MBEEREREERNED
ZHE

AEBR-_ZE——FR-_FT——
FZR=+—BHAZHBEEE
I EaBEZ RABERALEE"
ARBERE ST

2012 2011
—E--F “T——F
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
BEE AREE REE AREE
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BEFT BYEFT BEFT BEFT
Financial assets: BEEE:
Loans and receivables, EFRERFE
at amortised cost RE N A 20,809 20,809 8,597 8,597
Financial liabilities: HEAaE:
Financial liabilities, HBEE REHEKK
at amortised cost 496,253 496,253 448,899 448,899

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions.

Other than financial assets and financial liabilities as stated
above, the Group and the Company has no other financial
instruments carried at fair value as at the end of the
reporting period.

MBEEMMBBEZAR(EE
THRR B R R < EER  MA
ARG R AIMISR 5 2 BRIER
BRERMEINETE

B LA EERMBREIN K
SERARBNHREHRL EH
bR ITAZATEBEIRK-
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Five Year FinanCiaI summary For the year ended 31 March 2012

Eﬂzﬂjﬁﬁg BE T ——F=F=1—HIEFE

RESULTS ¥E
For the year ended 31 March
BE-A=t-RALEE
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“TTN\F ZTEAF ZT-TF ZF-F ZB-CF
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEFT  EMFrT  EEFr  BEFT  EETR
Turnover HED 48,558 31,490 35,108 42,392 48,873
Cost of sales and services HE BRI (69,022) (51,281) (55,060) (55,541) (40,849)
Gross (loss)/profit £(8)/7 (20,464)  (19,791)  (19,952)  (13,149) 8,024
Other revenue and other gain Hi A R E ezt 37,387 2,334 8,401 1,659 2,704
Distribution costs BITRA 617) (518) (10,788) (2,068) (256)
Administrative and other operating expenses ~ {TH R E i 2 EH Y (39,148)  (22,791)  (23,022)  (25347)  (27,567)
Impairment losses recognised, net BRERRERSEFE 2,172) - - - =
Loss from operations HEER (25,014)  (40,766)  (45361)  (38,905)  (17,095)
Finance costs BIRERC AR (26,413) (25,274) (20,721) (23,022) (23,371)
Share of results of associates DEBHENREE (138) - - - =
Loss before income tax BRABHAER (51,565) (66,040) (66,082) (61,927) (40,466)
Income tax PSR 900 1,580 2,339 11,611 =
Loss for the year FEBB (50,665)  (64,460)  (63,743)  (50,316)  (40,466)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 31 March
W=B=+-H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
ZZTNF ZZTNF 2T —T——F ZEB-ZFf
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEFT  EMFT  BETr  BEFT  BETx
Total assets BELT 11,422 10,447 17,524 21,503 28,201
Total liabilities aEmE (312,667)  (376,152)  (403,942)  (449,387)  (496,291)
(301,245)  (365,705)  (386,418)  (427,884)  (468,090)
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